SCG CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

2024 EDITION



CONTENTS

Message from the Board of Directors

Part 1 Introduction

- Four Core Values of SCG
- SCG Code of Conduct

Part 2 Corporate Governance Structure, Policies and Guidelines

- Corporate Governance Structure
- Corporate Governance Policy
- Charter of The Board of Directors
- Charter of The Audit Committee
- Charter of The Governance and Nomination Committee
- Charter of The Remuneration Committee
- Charter of The CSR Committee for Sustainable Development
- Charter of The Environmental Sustainability Development Committee
- Charter of Internal Audit

Part 3 Policies related to Compliance with SCG Corporate Governance Principles

3.1 Policies and Guidelines on the Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and the Management

- Policy on Director Qualifications and Nomination
- Qualifications of Independent Directors of the Company
- Policy on the Target Share of the Independent Directors on the Board
- Policy on Limitation of the Number of Listed Companies Where Directors May Hold Directorship
- Policy and Guidelines on SCG Top Executive's Directorship in Organizations outside SCG
- Policy on Attendance at the Board of Directors Meetings
- The Formulation of a Systematic Director Training and Development Plan
- Insider Trading Policy
- Blackout Period

3.2 Policies and Guidelines on the Organization Management

- Compliance Policy
- Policy for the Appointment of Directors and Executives to Subsidiaries
- SCG Risk Management Policy
- Connected Transaction and Related Party Transaction
- Anti-Corruption Policy

- Policy on Protection and Fairness for Employees Who Inform on or Disclose of Wrongful Conduct or Non-Compliance with Laws, Rules and Regulations, the Company's Articles of Association, and SCG Code of Conduct (Whistleblowing Policy)
- SCG Disclosure Policy
- Investor Relations Code of Conduct
- Human Right Policy
- SCG Privacy Policy
- Intellectual Property Policy (IP Policy)

3.3 Policies and Guidelines toward Stakeholders

- Stakeholder Engagement Policy
- Policy and Guideline on Stakeholders
- Diversity and Inclusion Policy
- Dividend Policy
- SCG Supplier Code of Conduct
- SCG Antitrust Policy
- SCG Procurement and Vendor Selection Policies and Guidelines
- SCG Environment and Climate Policy

Part 4 Appendix

Definitions

Message from the Board of Directors

SCG has continuously carried on its business for over 100 years under the thorough supervision of the Board of Directors to fulfill its commitment to just and responsible business conduct toward every stakeholder and adherence to the long-standing principles observed and practiced since the Company's establishment. All of this is achieved under the Code of Conduct, which is constantly reviewed and adjusted to reflect economic and social changes on the basis of balanced and sustainable growth.

The Board of Directors has deemed that the principle of Corporate Governance is a universally-accepted organizational management guideline that closely corresponds with SCG's core values and Code of Conduct. As such, the Company has compiled and employed various bodies of knowledge and practices relevant to organizational management in its business conduct, which is rooted in ethics, integrity, and social responsibility, as consistently practiced and passed down from generation to generation insofar as it is evident and accepted that such guidelines truly correspond with and achieve the same objectives as the principles prescribed by the SCG Corporate Governance. Therefore, these guidelines have been compiled in SCG Corporate Governance, first published in 2003.

Given the shifting social and economic landscape as well as the global climate of attempts to define guidelines and principles for organizational management that are in line with international corporate governance standards so as to create confidence in stakeholders and promote sustainable growth, the Board of Directors has approved a revision of the content of SCG Corporate Governance to keep it aligned with current changes. The revision is carried out in adherence to The Principles of Good Corporate Governance for Listed Companies 2012 stipulated by the Stock Exchange of Thailand, Corporate Governance Code for Listed Company 2017 stipulated by The Securities and Exchange Commission, and The Thai Institute of Directors Association as well as the ASEAN Corporate Governance Scorecard, which aims to elevate corporate governance of listed companies in ASEAN nations to international standards.

SCG aims to develop the organization as a model in Corporate Governance and has declared such a commitment in SCG visions because of its conviction that SCG Corporate Governance is a management system that will create fairness, transparency, return, and added values for shareholders in the long run as well as create confidence in every stakeholder and promote the Company's competitive capability for sustainable growth.

Air Chief Marshal Satitpong Sukvimol Chairman of the Board of Directors

As an individual prospers in life through moral conduct	- -•,
so does a company through ethical practices.	

<u>Part 1</u> Introduction

Part 1 Introduction

Four Core Values of the Siam Cement Group (SCG)

The present prosperity, success, and stability of SCG are the result of conducting business according to its ethical core values – the ideals that have been held in high regard and put into practice by the Board of Directors, by management, and by staff at all levels. They are:

- Adherence to fairness
- Dedication to excellence
- Belief in the value of the individual
- Concern for social responsibility

Adherence to Fairness

It is the responsibility of SCG to ensure that all who come in contact with us are treated with equal fairness. For example:

- Customers who use our goods and services will obtain maximum benefit in terms of quality and cost.
- Shareholders will receive a proper rate of return on their investment.
- Employees will enjoy both appropriate compensation and a good standard of living.
- All groups of stakeholders will be fairly treated.

Dedication to Excellence

SCG is dedicated to right conduct and achieving the best results in all we undertake.

All employees and persons who come into contact with SCG recognize the total effort, knowledge, and skill we devote to constantly improving what we do. We strive to learn and pursue whatever we can to help us overcome obstacles and advance in the path of growth and sustainability. This dedication will generate the best results for both SCG and all stakeholders

Belief in the Value of the Individual

SCG is convinced that each of our staff constitutes our most valuable assets. SCG has managed to prosper through the efforts of our good and knowledgeable people, who have chosen to spend their careers with us. We select the most ethical and capable individuals we can find, and then enrich them to cope with challenges of our changing times. In return, we provide all our employees with security and a sense of belonging. With such care and concern between the Company and staff, little wonder that our personnel work so hard and skillfully for the progress of SCG.

Concern for Social Responsibility

SCG behaves as a good corporate citizen in all communities and countries where we operate. We diligently perform our social duties and responsibilities while engaging in activities to preserve natural resources and sustainability of the environment.

SCG Code of Conduct

Implementing the Code of Conduct

1. Persons Obliged to Observe the Code of Conduct

All employees of SCG are obliged to observe principles and guidelines stipulated in SCG Code of Conduct, and Directors shall serve as role models of such conduct.

2. Advice Concerning the Code of Conduct

- 1) Study principles and guidelines stipulated in SCG Code of Conduct, particularly in areas relevant to your roles and responsibilities.
- 2) Consult your supervisors or refer to the Code of Conduct consultation system if you are

not certain whether an action is in line with SCG Code of Conduct.

- 3) Communicate with colleagues and relevant parties to establish an understanding of practices prescribed in SCG Code of Conduct
- 4) Notify the Company upon encountering violations of SCG Code of Conduct via provided channels and cooperate in the fact-finding process.

3. Non-compliance with SCG Code of Conduct

- Non-compliance with the principles and practices stipulated in SCG Code of Conduct may result in disciplinary or legal actions, to be reviewed on a case by case basis, and may be liable to penalties as prescribed.
- In addition to non-compliance with SCG Code of Conduct mentioned above, any promotion of non-compliance, failure to report non-compliance, obstruction of factfinding processes, and unfair treatment of informants also constitutes non-compliance with SCG Code of Conduct.

4. Responding to non-compliance with SCG Code of Conduct

SCG has put in place a whistleblowing system in accordance with international standards. If you are aware or encounter a case of non-compliance or if you have been affected by corruption or violations of laws, regulations, the company's articles of association, or its Code of Conduct, you may provide relevant information by following these steps:

- File a complaint via channels provided and ensure that the information is neither false nor submitted with malice intent, both of which will constitute a violation of human resources regulations.
- The Company has a procedure for handling complaints and providing protection to whistleblowers and informants.

5. Whistleblowing Policy

SCG has put in place a whistleblowing policy to ensure fair treatment of whistleblowers, informants, fact-finding committees, and investigation committees related to a case of corruption or violations of laws, regulations, the company's articles of association, or its Code of Conduct. The details are as follows.

- 1. If the whistleblower or informant reveals their name, the company will be able to notify them of progress and mitigate impact with greater ease and convenience.
- 2. SCG considers all relevant information confidential and will reveal only as much as necessary, taking into consideration the safety and possible consequences to the whistleblower, information sources, or parties related to SCG.
- 3. If the whistleblower feels that their safety is threatened or that they may affected, they may request appropriate protection measures from the company. The Company may prescribe protection measures without such a request if it appears that the whistleblower is likely to be affected or put in danger.
- 4. Those affected will receive compensation through an appropriate and fair process

Guidelines of SCG Code of Conduct

1. Human and Labor Rights

SCG aspires to conduct business with integrity and responsibility towards society and all stakeholders. Therefore, the Company recognizes the significance of respecting the human rights of every individual, treating everyone according to human rights principles, avoiding any action that constitutes a human right violation, as well as promoting human rights. This also includes the treatment of labor in accordance with human rights principles, labor laws, and relevant regulations on the basis of fairness.

Respect for human rights and fair treatment of labor apply to all direct business activities of SCG as well as the activities of its vendors and business partners in the business value chain and joint ventures.

2. Environment, Health, and Safety

2.1 Environment

SCG is committed to environmental conservation and management across its value chain. To this end, the Company encourages compliance with laws and its own policies on the environment and climate as well as requires the same level of environmental practices with SCG's environmental and climate policies as a baseline standard among all suppliers, direct and indirect service providers, key business partners, and business associates in, for instance, non-executive operations, external procurement, greenfield projects and renovation projects, agreement making, as well as mergers and acquisitions. SCG also cultivates consciousness about these issues among its employees and all parties involved in its business operations in order to promote compliance with related practices, incorporate environmental management into the organizational culture, and encourage concrete implementation.

2.2 **Health and Safety**

SCG places great emphasis on the health and safety of employees, suppliers, customers, communities, and stakeholders across the value chain, encompassing the manufacturing process, service and solution provision, as well as logistics and transportation, both in local and overseas offices. Health and safety impact assessment and risk management must be conducted before making any investment, entering into any joint venture, or initiating greenfield projects or renovation/improvement projects. All facilities, manufacturing processes, technology, machines, equipment, raw materials, services, logistics, and transportation must be taken care of to ensure the health and safety of all relevant stakeholders. In addition, health and safety awareness must be cultivated among employees and related parties to ensure compliance with relevant practices.

2.3 Safety of Products and Services

.SCG ensures that all products and services meet safety standards as stipulated by domestic laws, industrial standards, and relevant international standards as well as meet the specifications as agreed with the customer. This applies to the entire life cycle and value chain, from product design, manufacturing, transportation, storage, usage, and end-of-life management. Sufficient information, warnings, and instructions must be provided to ensure customer safety through the life cycle of a product and service. Particular attention must be paid to the safety of all products that SCG hires others to produce, imports, or uses in sale promotion activities.

3. Anti-Corruption

SCG's business should be conducted with stakeholders in correct, transparent, honest and traceable ways with no corruption. The business must comply with relevant laws and SCG's Anti- Corruption Policy ensuring it shall not cause condemnation or loss of reputation.

4. Gifts and Entertainment

Receiving and giving benefits including items of value, services, facilitating or entertainment with persons involved in business must be made in accordance with the customs of each locality or country and relevant laws, provided that the value of such is appropriate and it will not motivate an unfair decision making.

5. Conflicts of Interest

SCG is determined to do right things with an aim for excellence. Therefore, employees must aim to maximize SCG's benefits, comply with the laws and ethics, and avoid action creating conflicts of interest that may affect any decision.

6. **Political Activities**

SCG maintains political neutrality and does not support or make contributions, financial or otherwise, to any particular political party, political coalition, person with political influence, or political candidate on a local, regional or national level, either directly or indirectly. Nonetheless, SCG recognizes and respects the political rights of its employees as good citizens, as stipulated in the constitution, such as the right to express political opinions within the bounds of the law, vote, or join a political party.

7. Handling of Information and Assets

7.1 Personal Information

SCG respects the privacy of its customers, shareholders, employees, and other related parties. Any activity related to personal data, including the collection, use, and disclosure of such data, is carried out in such a manner that ensures that the rights of the data owner are fully protected in compliance with the law and SCG Privacy Policy.

7.2 Recording, Reporting, and Storing Information

SCG has realized the importance of internal information management. Recording and storing of information must comply with SCG's standard and be complete as prescribed by law. For storing, all employees are obligated to ensure that the information involved with their work remains safe and available for reference or use by SCG whenever needed.

7.3 Buying and Selling Securities and Use of Inside Information

Use of inside information which is material must be appropriately done considering impacts on all stakeholders and legitimacy. The information must not be used for personal or other people's benefits.

7.4 Use and protection of the Company's assets

SCG has made efficient and full use of its assets and promoted the employees to protect them from damage, loss or personal use for themselves and other people.

7.5 Use and Protection of Information Technology System

SCG desires that information technologies are used efficiently and safely according to SCG e-Policy to

protect and preserve them from infringement or use without permission.

7.6 Use and Protection of Intellectual Property

SCG regards intellectual property as valuable assets to SCG. Employees must strictly follow established 'SCG Intellectual Property (IP) Policy' and protect SCG's intellectual property from unauthorized use or disclosure and must respect and not infringe other people's intellectual properties.

8. Information Disclosure and Communication

8.1 Information Disclosure

SCG's disclosure of information is based on fairness, transparency and traceability. It must be ensured that the information is correct, current, clear, complaint with law on fair basis regardless of format as written and verbal, press conference or any other manner.

8.2 Communication

SCG's communication including SCG brand communication to internal and external target, marketing communication of brands in SCG, use of SCG logo and communication via social media must be properly and accurately done considering fairness to every stakeholder and must not lead to damages to SCG. The Brand Communication Guidelines and SCG Social Media Policy should be strictly observed.

9. SCG's Transactions

9.1 Transactions between Companies in SCG

Any business or work that incurs related transaction between SCG group of companies must abide by the laws and regulations issued by state agencies; SCG's policies, practices, regulations, and the Delegation of Authority; and the principles and conditions relevant to each locality.

9.2 Transaction between SCG and External Parties

Transactions with external parties must be conducted properly, and comply with laws, regulations issued by state agencies and SCG's policy and must be strictly approved based on SCG's authority table. Moreover, it must be according to the conditions agreed upon, transparent and traceable. Avoid transactions that may cause trouble or damage to SCG or external parties.

10. Doing Business Abroad and International Trading

10.1 Doing Business Abroad

All of SCG business operation abroad including establishing a company, plant, office, branch, agent; trading with dealer; or doing acquisition overseas must comply with the laws and rules applicable in that country which SCG has invested and perform as good citizen in each locality. Moreover, such business operation must also take into account the circumstances, customs, traditions, and culture of each locality.

10.2 International Trading

Import and export of products or any transactions of SCG relating to foreign countries must strictly comply with relevant laws such as laws on import and export, customs act, product safety and consumer protection laws including relevant SCG's regulations and guidelines.

11. Business Competition

SCG is committed to fair business practices in compliance with the law and takes into account ethical

trade practices when conducting business with its customers, suppliers and business partners, fair competition with other business operators, and trade competition laws of every country where SCG conducts business. In addition, SCG shall not engage in any act that may result in unfair trade or obstruct free competition and shall comply with its relevant policies and practices.

12. Anti-Laundering Measures

SCG complies with all guidelines and laws pertaining to the suppression of money laundering. SCG will not accept transfers or conversions of assets or support such actions insofar as they are related to criminal activities, and will prevent anyone using SCG as a channel or instrument for the dispersion or concealment of illegally obtained assets.

Part 2 Corporate Governance Structure, Policies and Guidelines

Shareholders As of January 1, 2025 The Siam Cement Public Company Limited **Board of Directors** ----- Reporting Line **The Audit Committee** The Remuneration Committee Companies that operate core businesses and oversee the management **Internal Audit Office** of subsidiaries and affiliate companies The Governance and Nomination Committee within their business units A Listed Company on the Stock Exchange The Environmental Sustainability of Thailand The CSR Committee for Sustainable **Development Committee** Development **President & CEO** SCG Sustainable Development **SCG Top Executives** Committee **Corporate Administration Finance and Investment SCG Risk Management Committee Company Secretary** Corporate Compliance Corporate Risk Management Unit Management Unit SCG Cement and SCG Smart Living SCG Distribution **SCG Decor SCGP Cleanergy SCG Investment** SCG Chemicals **SCGP Green Solutions** and Retail (SCGD) (SCGC) SCG Cement – SCG Cleanergy SCG Packaging Public SCG Distribution The Concrete Building Materials SCG Decor Public SCG Chemicals Company Limited (SCGP)* and Company Limited (SCG Company Limited (SCG Products and Aggregate Company Limited (SCG Company Limited (SCGD)* Public Company Limited its subsidiaries Cleanergy) and its Dist) and its subsidiaries and its subsidiaries Company Limited (CPAC) CBM) and its subsidiaries (SCGC) and its subsidiaries subsidiaries and its subsidiaries

Part 2 Corporate Governance Structure, Policies and Guidelines

Corporate Governance Policy

SCG operates its business with responsibility, transparency and fairness, observes the principles that have been practiced through generations and are outlined in SCG Code of Conduct, as well as operates on the basis of balanced and sustainable success, with the Company's Board and top executives serving as role models in adhering to SCG Code of Conduct and Corporate Governance principles.

SCG's corporate governance is considered an integral part of its business policy. The Governance and Nomination Committee is entrusted with overseeing SCG's corporate governance matters, encompassing the establishment of policy and guidelines as well as monitoring the performances of the Board of Directors and the Management to ensure their compliance with SCG's corporate governance policy. The Committee also monitors and evaluates the corporate governance practices as well as regularly reviews the guidelines to ensure their alignment with business operations and corporate governance practices on national and international levels. Moreover, corporate governance is specified as one of the main items on the agenda at the Board of Directors' meeting.

CHARTER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(Revised as of October 26, 2022 by the Board of Directors' resolution)

The Board of Directors is the driving force of the organization. Its roles and duties are to set strategies and policies pertaining to business operation of the company. The Board of Directors must perform its duties responsibly, carefully, loyally, and in the best interest of the Company on the basis of social and environmental responsibility and fairness to all stakeholders under the principles of good corporate governance. In addition, the board plays an important role in overseeing and assessing the performance of SCG Management Committee and the President & CEO to ensure the accomplishment of SCG's action plan. The Board of Directors has thus resolved to adopt this Charter of the Board of Directors so that every director is aware of his/her duties and responsibilities and performs them correctly and completely, so as to create value to SCG, customers, stakeholders, and society as a whole in a sustainable manner.

1. Scope of Duties

The duties of the Board of Directors are as follows:

Take responsibility as the leaders who sustainably bring value to the Company's business

- 1.1 Acting in a best interest of shareholders (Fiduciary Duty) by observing the following four main practices:
 - 1.1.1 Performing its duties with responsibility and all due circumspection and caution (Duty of Care).
 - 1.1.2 Performing its duties with faithfulness and honesty (Duty of Loyalty).
 - 1.1.3 Performing its duties in compliance with laws, objectives, Company's Articles of Association, the resolution of the board of directors, and resolutions of shareholders' meetings (Duty of Obedience).
 - 1.1.4 Disclosing information to shareholders accurately, completely, and transparently with verification and timeliness. (Duty of Disclosure).
- 1.2 Directing SCG's visions, missions, and business strategies, subject to annual revision and approval, to create value to SCG, customers, stakeholders, and society as a whole in a sustainable manner.

- 1.3 Directing the Company's operation in compliance with the laws, objectives, Articles of Association, resolutions of the Board of Directors and resolutions of Shareholders' Meetings in good faith and with care, prudence, and integrity to preserve the highest interests of the Company with fairness to all stakeholders.
- 1.4 Overseeing and developing SCG's corporate governance to keep it consistent with international standards to provide guidelines for business operations while monitoring to ensure compliance and being a role model in complying with the principles of good corporate governance and SCG Code of Conduct.

<u>Define key objectives and business goals that promote sustainable value creation</u>

1.5 Reviewing the major operating plan, budgets, business goals, and business policies and enhancing the capabilities of SCG to reach a globally competitive level.

Strengthen Board effectiveness

- Defining and reviewing the structure of the Board of Directors, number of directors, proportion of independent director as well as Board diversity and director qualifications, including knowledge, expertise, experience, and specializations to align with SCG's business operations; and appointing the chairmen and members of sub-committees to assist and support the board's discharge of duties.
- 1.7 Assessing the performance of the Board of Directors annually by performing three types of assessments, namely that of the Board and its Sub-committees as a whole, that of each individual director as a self-assessment, and that of the chairman together with monitoring the assessment results of the Board and its Sub-committees which will be jointly deliberated by the Board of Directors as well as reviewing the assessment results of the Board and Sub-committees on a regular basis.
- 1.8 Overseeing and monitoring to ensure the selection and nomination process of a director is carried out transparently and the remunerations for directors and Sub-committee members are determined appropriately.
- 1.9 Devoting sufficient time to performing their duties, attending all meetings of the Board of Directors and Shareholders' Meetings, except in unavoidable circumstances. The directors who are unable to attend a meeting must notify the Chairman or the Secretary to the Board in advance of the meeting.
- 1.10 Developing their knowledge and competency related to their duties through courses or curricula related to directorial duties or seminars that enhance their knowledge.

Nominate top executives and encourage development of their skills, and manage the

Company personnel

1.11 Reviewing top executive development plans and the succession plan for the President & CEO while overseeing to ensure the effective performance assessment of top executives on an annual basis and determining appropriate remuneration in line with the Company's operating results to provide both short-term and long-term incentives.

Promote innovation and responsible business

- 1.12 Overseeing to ascertain shareholders' involvement in the decision making of SCG's important matters, respecting the rights of shareholders, ensuring the equitable and transparent treatment of shareholders and other stakeholders, establishing a clear process and channels for receiving and handling complaints from informants or stakeholders effectively and ensuring an opportunity for every stakeholder to contact or lodge complaints about potential issues directly to the Board of Directors.
- 1.13 Overseeing and monitoring IT management and the implementation of the IT security system.
- 1.14 Overseeing and monitoring the implementation of the Company's strategies; overseeing and monitoring of each business unit's and SCG's overall performance by requiring their performance reports periodically; and setting policies to develop and improve the business operations with concern for safety, hygiene, social and environmental responsibility and development of SCG's employees.

Monitor the implementation of effective risk management and internal control systems

- 1.15 Specifying risk management policies and overseeing to ensure effective risk management systems and internal control together with reviewing and assessing the systems periodically and in the wake of a change in risk levels.
- 1.16 Encouraging staff at all levels to be conscious of ethics and morality and comply with SCG's principles of corporate governance, Code of Conduct and the Anti-corruption policy while overseeing the proper internal control system and internal audits to reduce the risk of fraud and abuse of authority and prevent any illegal act.
- 1.17 Monitoring and managing any potential conflicts of interest between the Company, the Management, the Board of Directors, or shareholders as well as overseeing to prevent misuse of SCG's assets and the entering into inappropriate transactions with persons connected with SCG.

Ensure disclosure and financial Integrity

- 1.18 Overseeing and monitoring the Company's liquidity and debt service coverage together with emergency plans and mechanisms in case of problems arising.
- 1.19 Overseeing and monitoring to ensure that the preparation of financial statements and disclosure of material information are accurate, sufficient, and timely and are in compliance with the relevant regulations and guidelines.

Ensure engagement and communication with shareholders

1.20 Overseeing and supporting the creation of innovations that create value for SCG as well as all stakeholders. Acting with social and environmental responsibility, and ensuring that the Management manages and allocates resources effectively and efficiently.

In performing its duties, the Board of Directors may seek external consultation from independent consultants or experts in various fields, as deemed necessary and appropriate.

2. Scope of Authority of the Chairman of the Board of Directors

The Chairman of the Board of Directors has the following authority:

- 2.1 Sets Board meeting agenda in consultation with the President & CEO and oversees to ensure Board members receive accurate, complete, timely, and clear information prior to the meeting to assist in their decision making process.
- 2.2 Provides leadership and direction to the Board of Directors and chairs meetings of the Board.
 - 2.2.1 Conducts a Board meeting according to the agendas, the Company's Regulations, and applicable laws.
 - 2.2.2 Encourages and allocates sufficient time to each Board member to discuss and express their free and frank opinion with due circumspection and concern for all stakeholders.
 - 2.2.3 Sums up the Board meeting resolutions and the actions to take clearly.
 - 2.2.4 Sets up a Board meeting without the presence of the Executive Director.
- 2.3 Chairs meetings of shareholders according to the agendas, the Company's Articles of Association, and relevant laws by allocating time appropriately along with providing opportunities for shareholders to express their opinions equitably and ensuring that shareholders' inquiries are responded to appropriately and transparently.
- 2.4 Supports and be a role model in compliance with the principles of good corporate governance and SCG Code of Conduct.
- 2.5 Fosters a positive working relationship between the Board of Directors and the Management and supports the performance of the duties of the President & CEO and the Management in accordance with the Company's policy.
- 2.6 Oversees to ensure the transparent disclosure of information and management in the event of conflicts of interest.
- 2.7 Oversees to ensure the Board of Directors has appropriate structure and composition.
- 2.8 Oversees that the Board of Directors as a whole, Sub-committee members, and each individual director perform their duties effectively and efficiently.

3. Composition of the Board of Directors

The compositions of the Board of Directors are as follows:

- 3.1 The Board of Directors consists of not less than 9 but not more than 15 directors, each of whom shall be appointed and removed by shareholders' meeting. Not less than half of the directors shall be residents of the Kingdom.
- 3.2 The Board of Directors consists of independent directors which shall total up not less than half of the directors, representatives of major shareholders, and directors from SCG Management.
- 3.3 The Board of Directors shall elect one of their members to be the Chairman of the Board.

When a person is appointed as a director of the Company, the Company shall provide he/she with SCG's director orientation and present to every new director a Director's Manual and various relevant information

so that he/she acknowledges his/her roles and duties as a director of the Company.

4 Qualifications of Company Directors

- 4.1 Company directors must be qualified pursuant to the requirements set forth in the Public Limited Company Act and Company's Articles of Association, they must not have any trustworthiness according to Notification of the Office of Securities and Exchange Commission.
- 4.2 Company directors must have a capacity of leadership, wide-ranging vision, and knowledge of SCG's business.
- 4.3 Each company director must be able to perform his/her duty and express opinions independently, and be able to devote sufficient time to perform his/her duties.
- 4.4 Each company director must not hold directorship in no more than a total of four other listed companies apart from SCG on The Stock Exchange of Thailand.

5 Terms of Office

At the annual general meeting of shareholders, one third of the directors, or if their number is not multiple of three, then the number nearest to one-third must retire from the office. The director who has held office longest shall retire. However, a retiring director is eligible for re-election.

Apart from the vacancy upon the expiration under the Company's Articles of Association, a director shall vacate office when:

- 1) he/she is no longer qualified for the office according to the Company's Articles of Association or any laws and regulations.
- 2) he/she gives notice of resignation to the Board of Directors, which shall be effective from the date that on which the Company receives the resignation letter;
- 3) he/she has been absent from three consecutive regular meetings of the Board of Directors without leave of absence, and the Board of Directors has passed a resolution by a vote of not less than half of all the directors that he/she retire from his/her office;
- 4) The shareholders pass a resolution removing him/her from office in accordance with the provisions of the Public Limited Company Act;
- 5) the court so orders;
- 6) he/she dies.

In case of vacancies of all members in the Board of Directors, the said Board of Directors may perform any act in the name of the Board of Directors only in matters necessary until a new Board of Directors takes over.

In case of a vacancy in the Board of Directors for any reason other than the expiration of the director's term of office, the Board of Directors shall elect a person who is fully qualified as the substitute director at the next meeting of the Board of Directors, unless the remaining term of office of the said director is less than 2 months. The substitute director shall hold office only for the remaining term of office of the director whom he/she

replaces.

6 Meetings of the Board of Directors

The Company has stipulated that there shall be at least 8 meetings of the Board of Directors per year. For each meeting, the main items of the agenda are to be clearly determined in advance. Special meetings may be called to consider important or urgent matters. The Chairman and the President& CEO will together determine the agenda and their matters to be considered at the meeting.

In calling a meeting of the Board of Directors, the Chairman or the Secretary to the Board of Directors, by order of the Chairman, shall serve a written notice calling for such meeting to the directors not less than 7 days prior to the date of the meeting. Where it is necessary or urgent, the meeting may be called by other methods and an earlier meeting date may be choosing.

In a board meeting, the Chairman of the Board of Directors or the chairman of the meeting may choose to conduct the meeting electronically according to defined criteria and methods to enable discussions and exchange of opinions among attendees who may not be in the same location.

7 Quorum

At a meeting of the Board of Directors at least half the number of directors must attend to constitute a quorum. In case the Chairman is absent or unable to perform his/her duty but the Vice-Chairman is present, the Vice-Chairman shall perform the duty on behalf of the Chairman. If there is no Vice-Chairman or such Vice-Chairman is not present at the meeting, or cannot perform his or her duties, the directors in attendance shall appoint one director to perform the duty on behalf of the Chairman.

Decision in the meeting shall be made by a simple majority vote. Each director is entitled to one vote. In the event of tie vote, the Chairman of the meeting shall have a casting vote.

Each director is entitled to one vote, but a director who has an interest in any matter shall not be entitled to vote on such matter.

In case of vacancies in the Board of Directors resulting in the number of directors being less than the number required for a quorum, the remaining directors may perform any act in the name of the Board of Directors only in matters relating to the calling of a shareholders' meeting to elect directors to replace all the vacancies, and that such shareholders' meeting shall be held within one month from the date the number of directors falls below the number required for a quorum.

8 The Board of Directors' Authorization

The Board of Directors is empowered to authorize various matters in accordance with the scope of authority stipulated by laws, the Company's regulations, Articles of Association, the Board of Directors charter, and the shareholders' meeting resolutions. Such matters include delegation of authority, defining and reviewing corporate vision, mission, operating strategies, operating plans, risk management policy, annual budget and

business plans, and medium-range business plan. Added to this is the defining of the target operating results, following up and assessing the operating results to ensure they are consistent with the plan, and overseeing capital expenditure, significant connected transactions, merger and acquisition, corporate spin-off, and joint venture deals.

9 Remuneration

The directors shall be paid a remuneration, the amount of which shall be fixed by the shareholders' meeting.

CHARTER OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

(Revised as of October 30, 2024 by the Board of Directors' resolution)

The business philosophy of the Siam Cement Public Company Limited ("the Company") is centered around "adherence to fairness, dedication to excellence, belief in the value of the individual, and concern for social responsibility." These form part of the ethical principles to which the Company has consistently adhered as guidelines for conducting business since its foundation, but in the form of traditions rather than in a systematic and official way until the Company compiled and codified them in writing into a Code of Business Ethics and an Employee Code of Conduct, effective since 1987.

Having an audit committee is a part of good corporate governance. The Board of Directors has, therefore, resolved to establish this Charter of the Audit Committee, based primarily on the Company's ethical guidelines and incorporating the relevant rules and laws.

1. Scope of Duties

The Audit Committee shall have the following duties:

Governance, risk management, operational supervision, and internal control

- 1.1 Ensuring that the Company has a system for financial reporting and disclosure of financial statements in accordance with financial reporting standards and promoting the development of financial reporting systems to be on par with international financial reporting standards.
- 1.2 Reviewing connected transactions, acquisition and disposition of assets, or transactions that may constitute conflicts of interest between the Company and its subsidiaries to ensure compliance with the laws and regulations of the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand.
- 1.3 Ensuring that the Company has risk management, working, control, and supervision processes, for operations and information technology and maintaining effective communication network systems security in compliance with international standards.
- 1.4 Ensuring that the Company has an anti-corruption policy that is suitable and adequate for business operations as well as an anti-corruption system that complies with the guidelines of various regulatory agencies, such as the Thai Private Sector Collective Action Coalition Against Corruption (CAC), the Thai

Institute of Directors Association (IOD), and the National Anti-Corruption Commission, beginning with fostering awareness, conducting risk management and internal control, establishing a preventative work system, reporting misconduct, and auditing, all the way to advising and following up to ensure compliance with the Anti-corruption Policy; as well as conducting a final review of the self-assessment on anti-corruption measures after it has been reviewed and assessed by the Internal Audit Office.

- 1.5 Ensuring that the Company and its subsidiaries have control and follow-up processes for compliance with securities and exchange laws, rules, regulations, and other laws relevant to the business of the Company and its subsidiaries.
- 1.6 Ensuring that the Company and its subsidiaries have internal control systems in accordance with the guidelines of the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) and internal audit systems that are appropriate, effective, and on par with widely accepted international practices and standards as well as conducting a final review of the "Internal Control System Sufficiency Assessment Form" after it has been reviewed and assessed by the Internal Audit Office in order to ensure that the Company and its subsidiaries have adequate internal control systems and present it to the Board of Directors for consideration.
- 1.7 Ensuring that a policy is put in place for receiving complaints regarding fraud and misconduct that is appropriate and adequate for business operations; reviewing the results of fraud investigations and penalties; establishing internal preventative measures; and reviewing the internal processes of the Company and its subsidiaries regarding whistleblowing and receiving complaints.
- 1.8 Ensuring that the Company has a beneficial preventive work system to increase operational efficiency and effectiveness.
- 1.9 In the case that the subsidiary is a SET-listed company or the subsidiary has its own audit committee, the implementation of Clauses 1.1–1.8 in the subsidiary and any other companies within its group shall be supervised by the subsidiary's own Audit Committee.

Others

- 1.10 Select and propose the appointment or discharge an independent person to perform the duties of the Company's auditor, propose the remuneration of the Company's auditor, evaluate the effectiveness of auditor's performance, and also approve the hiring process and qualifications based on the fundamental principles and independence of the auditor or member of the audit's firm or network firm in using non-audit, non-review, or non-assurance services.
- 1.11 Arranging for the preparation of an Audit Committee Report for disclosure in the Company's annual report. The report must be signed by the Chair of the Audit Committee and contain opinions on various matters according to the regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

- 1.12 Reviewing and commenting on the performance of the Internal Audit Office, coordinating with the auditor, and arranging for a meeting with the auditor and without the involvement of management at least once a year.
- 1.13 Consider and approve the internal audit plan, budget and personnel of the Internal Audit Office, as well as approve the appointment, appraisal or removal of the Internal Audit Director.
- 1.14 Evaluating the independence of the internal audit unit based on the performance of duties and various reports, including the chain of command, and ensuring that an assessment of the performance of the Internal Audit Office is undertaken according to international standards.
- 1.15 Ensuring that an assessment as well as a self-assessment of the performance of the Audit Committee as a whole is undertaken annually and reviewing the Audit Committee Charter at least once a year for submission to the Board of Directors for approval.
- 1.16 Performing any other duties as required by law or as assigned by the Board of Directors with the approval of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee operates within the scope of duties and responsibilities determined by the Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors is directly responsible for the Company's operations and answers to shareholders, stakeholders, and individuals.

In performing its duties, the Audit Committee has the power to summon and compel the management, heads of departments, or employees of related companies to share their opinions, attend meetings, or hand over documents as deemed relevant and necessary as well as to seek independent opinions from any other professional advisors when deemed necessary at the expense of the Company.

2. Composition of the Audit Committee

The composition of the Audit Committee shall be as follows:

- 2.1 The Audit Committee shall be appointed by the Board of Directors.
- 2.2 The Audit Committee shall consist of at least three independent directors, at least one of whom must have sufficient knowledge and experience in accounting or finance to review the reliability of financial statements.
- 2.3 The Chair of the Audit Committee may be appointed by the Board of Directors or the Audit Committee.
- 2.4 The Audit Committee shall appoint the Secretary of the Audit Committee.

3. Qualifications of the Audit Committee

Members of the Audit Committee must be company directors who are qualified to be independent directors according to the definition specified by the Company and in compliance with the requirements of the Capital Market Supervisory Board and the announcements of the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

4. Term of office

The term of office of the members of the Audit Committee shall equal to the individual term of office and ends at the annual general meeting of shareholders. However, upon the expiration of a committee member's term, reappointment may be considered as deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors. An Audit Committee member whose term has expired must remain in the position as an acting committee member until a replacement is appointed.

In the event that the term of office of every member in the Audit Committee expires at the same time, the members must remain in their positions as acting committee members for the time being until the new Audit Committee takes office.

In addition to the expiration of the term of office mentioned above, a member of the Audit Committee vacates office upon

- 1) Resignation
- 2) Failure to qualify as an Audit Committee member in accordance with this charter
- 3) Removal by the Board of Directors

A member of the Audit Committee wishing to resign from office must submit a letter of resignation in writing to the Chair of the Board of Directors. The resignation is effective from the day the letter is received by the Chair.

In the event that a member of the Audit Committee resigns or is removed from office before the expiration of the term of office, the Company must notify the SET immediately. The member of the Audit Committee who resigned or was removed from office has the right to inform the SEC and SET of the reasons for such action if so desired.

In the event that a position on the Audit Committee is vacated for reasons other than the expiration of the term of office, the Board of Directors must appoint an individual who is fully qualified and does not possess any characteristics prohibited by relevant laws as a replacement within three months of the position being vacated so that the Audit Committee has the minimum number of members required by law and the Board of Directors. The replacement Audit Committee member can remain in office only until the expiration of the term of office of the original member who was replaced.

5. Meetings

The Audit Committee must convene at least four meetings per year.

When calling an Audit Committee meeting, the Chair of the Audit Committee, or the Secretary of the Audit Committee by order of the Chair, shall notify the members of the Audit Committee in writing no fewer than three days before the meeting date, except in the case that an urgent meeting is called, in which case notification may be made via electronic or other channels, and a meeting date may be set within fewer than three days.

The Chair of the Audit Committee or the meeting chair can arrange to hold a meeting online so that attendees not present in the same location may still meet to discuss and express opinions with one another so long as the prescribed rules and procedures are followed.

The Audit Committee should hold meetings on various matters within its scope of duties.

6. Quorum

At each Audit Committee meeting, at least one-half of the total number of members on the committee appointed by the company must be in attendance to constitute a quorum. In the event that the Chair of the Audit Committee cannot be in attendance or perform duties, the committee members in attendance must appoint one attending member to chair the meeting.

The decisions of the Audit Committee meetings shall be made by majority vote.

Each member of the Audit Committee has one vote. In the event of a tie, the chair of the meeting shall have the casting vote. Any committee member who has a direct or indirect interest in a given matter is not eligible to decide or vote on such matter.

7. Minutes of the Audit Committee Meeting

The Secretary of the Audit Committee or person assigned by the Audit Committee has the responsibility of taking down the minutes of the meeting. The minutes must be approved by the Audit Committee, and the Audit Committee shall report the results of the meeting to the Board of Directors to keep the Board abreast of the activities of the Audit Committee.

8. Responsibilities of the Audit Committee

- 8.1 Upon being made aware that the auditor has discovered suspicious circumstances indicating that a Managing Director or a person responsible for the operation of the Company may have committed a violation of the Securities and Exchange Act, Section 281/2 Paragraph Two, Section 305, Section 306, Section 308, Section 309, Section 310, Section 311, Section 312, or Section 313, the Audit Committee shall conduct an audit and report the results of the preliminary audit to the SEC and the auditor within 30 days of being notified by the auditor.
- 8.2 In performing its duties, if the Audit Committee finds or suspects any of the following circumstances or actions which may have a significant impact on the financial position and performance of the Company, the Audit Committee shall report it to the Board of Directors for corrective action within the timeframe

that the Audit Committee deems appropriate:

- (1) Conflict of interest
- (2) Fraud or an anomaly or significant defect in the internal control system
- (3) Violation of laws governing securities and exchange, SET regulations, or laws relevant to the company's business.

If the Board of Directors or the management fails to take corrective action within the timeframe specified by the Audit Committee, any member of the Audit Committee may report such circumstances or actions to the SEC or SET.

9. Remuneration

The Audit Committee shall receive remuneration according to the amount approved in the shareholders' meeting.

CHARTER OF THE GOVERNANCE AND NOMINATION COMMITTEE

(Revised as of October 26, 2022 by the Board of Directors' resolution)

The Governance and Nomination Committee is a part of good corporate governance. The duties of the Governance and Nomination Committee are to recommend practices and procedures concerning corporate governance of SCG to the Board of Directors, and also to identify qualified candidates to replace directors retiring at the end of their terms, or for other cases. The Board of Directors has thus resolved to adopt this Charter of the Governance and Nomination Committee so that every member of the Governance and Nomination Committee is aware of his/her duties and responsibilities and performs them correctly and completely.

1. Scope of Duties

The duties of the Governance and Nomination Committee are as follows:

- 1.1 Define the scope and policy of SCG's corporate governance and propose to the Board of Directors on a regular basis.
- 1.2 Make recommendations on the practice of SCG's corporate governance and give advice on corporate governance to the Board of Directors.
- 1.3 Oversee and monitor the performance of the Company's Board of Directors and the executive committee to ensure their compliance with SCG's corporate governance policy.
- 1.4 Review the practice of corporate governance within SCG to ensure it is appropriate for the Company's business operations and consistent with international best practices and make recommendations to the Board of Directors for further improvement and keeping it up-to-date.
- 1.5 Review the independence of the Board of Directors, as well as any potential conflicts of interest in the performance of its duties.
- 1.6 Review the appropriateness of retaining the directorship should there be any change in a director's qualifications.
- 1.7 Review and give advice to the Board of Directors on the structure, roles and responsibilities, and

- practices of the Board of Directors and the Sub-committees. Review the suitability of the Charter of the Board of Directors and the committees, the Governance and Nomination Committee annually.
- 1.8 Define nomination and selection procedures and guidelines in accordance with applicable regulations and laws. Nominate qualified candidates for directorship to replace a director retiring at the end of their terms, or whatever the case may be, as well as nominate directors to sub-committees, to which authority and responsibilities are directly assigned by the Board of Directors, with the diversity of the board regarding knowledge, expertise, experience, and specializations beneficial to the Company taken into consideration, and submit a list of candidates to the Board of Directors and/or Shareholders' Meeting for approval.
- 1.9 Propose guidelines and methods for remuneration to be paid to the Board of Directors and the subcommittees appointed by the Board of Directors, including bonus and attendance fee.
- 1.10 Review, study, and track regularly the changes and trends in remuneration for the Board of Directors and sub-committees in order to propose for the approval of the Board of Directors.
- 1.11 Consider the remuneration of the Board of Directors, as compared to the remuneration offered by other listed companies operating in the same business, to ensure that SCG retains its leadership in that industry and to motivate them to foster the Company's continuing development.
- 1.12 Develop director development plans to enhance the knowledge and skills of directors and foster their understanding of the roles and duties of directors, business, economic conditions, standards, risks, the environment, information technology, as well as laws and rules relevant to SCG's businesses; and formulate the Board Skills Matrix, taking into account the diversity of the board to suit SCG's business operations.
- 1.13 Recommend methods for performance assessment of the Board of Directors, Sub-committees, and the Chairman on an annual basis as well as follow up and report the assessment results to the Board of Directors, allowing them to enhance their performance of duties and improve the directors' competency.
- 1.14 Report regularly a progress and performance results to the Board of Directors after every meeting of the Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee.
- 1.15 Review the performance appraisal of the Governance and Nomination Committee on a regular annual basis as a whole and as self-assessment.
- 1.16 Promote ethics, integrity, as well as compliance with SCG Code of Conduct and good corporate governance principles.
- 1.17 Perform other duties as assigned by the Board of Directors.

To fulfill its duties under its scope of authority, the Governance and Nomination Committee is authorized to call for and order the management, heads of offices or employees concerned to give opinions, attend meetings or submit necessary documents. In addition, the committee may seek external consultation from independent consultants or experts in various fields, as deemed necessary and appropriate, at the

Company's expense.

2. Composition of the Governance and Nomination Committee

The compositions of the Governance and Nomination Committee are as follows:

- 2.1 The Governance and Nomination Committee consists of not less than 3 members.
- 2.2 The members of the committee must be appointed by the Board of Directors.
- 2.3 The Chairman of the Governance and Nomination Committee may be appointed by either the Board of Directors or the Governance and Nomination Committee.

3. Qualifications of the Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee

- 3.1 Shall be Company directors.
- 3.2 Shall possess knowledge and good understandings on corporate governance.
- 3.3 Shall have wide-ranging vision, and keep updated continuously with changes of corporate governance internationally for further improvement of SCG's corporate governance policies.
- 3.4 Shall be able to independently perform his/her duties, express opinions, report on the performance of the assigned duties, and devote sufficient time to perform his/her duties.
- 3.5 The members of the Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee must be neutral in looking for and selection of persons qualified for nomination to hold the position of Company directors, replacing those whose terms of office expired or for other cases, and in preparation of sufficient biographical data of such persons for the consideration of the Board of Directors.

4. Terms of Office

The term of office of the members of the Governance and Nomination Committee is 3-year each, ending at the annual general meeting of shareholders. A retiring member is eligible for re-appointment.

Apart from the vacancy upon the expiration as aforementioned, a member of the Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee shall vacate office when:

- 1) he/she resigns;
- 2) he/she is no longer qualified for the office of the Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee, as specified in this charter;
- 3) the Board of Directors pass a resolution removing him/her from office.

If a member of the Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee wishes to resign, he/she shall give notice of resignation to the Chairman of the Company's Board of Directors. The resignation shall be effective from the date on which the Chairman of the Company's Board of Directors receives the resignation letter.

In case of vacancies of all members in the Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee, the said Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee may perform any act in the name of the Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee only in matters necessary until a new Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee takes over the duties.

In case of a vacancy in the Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee for reason other than expiration of the term of office, the Board of Directors shall elect a person who is fully qualified as a substitute member

of the Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee so that the number of members of the Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee remains in full as the Board of Directors had stipulated. The substitute member shall hold office only for the remaining term of office of the member whom he/she replaces.

5. Meetings

Meetings of the Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee are to be called whenever the Committee or the Chairman of the Committee sees fit. There must be at least 4 meetings per year.

In calling a meeting of the Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee, the Chairman or the Secretary of the Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee, by order of the Chairman, shall serve a written notice calling for such meeting to members of the Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee not less than 3 days prior to the date of the meeting. Where it is necessary or urgent, the meeting may be called via electronic or by other methods and an earlier meeting date may be choosing.

In a meeting of the Governance and Nomination Committee, the Chairman of the Governance and Nomination Committee or the chairman of the meeting may choose to conduct the meeting electronically according to defined criteria and methods to enable discussions and exchange of opinions among attendees who may not be in the same location.

The Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee should hold meetings to discuss matters within its scope of duties.

6. Quorum

At a meeting of the Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee, at least half the number of the members of the Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee must attend to constitute a quorum. In case the Chairman is absent or unable to perform his/her duty, the Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee shall appoint a member who is attending the meeting to perform the duty on behalf of the Chairman.

Decisions in the meeting shall be by a simple majority vote. Each member of the Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee is entitled to one vote. In the event of tie vote, the Chairman of the meeting shall have a casting vote. The member of the Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee who has an interest in any matter, he/she shall not be entitled to vote on such matter.

Resolutions of the Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee may be made without meeting, and shall be deemed valid as if they were made at the meeting, when all members of the Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee have adopted it by their signatures.

7. Remuneration

The Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee shall be paid a remuneration, the amount of which shall be fixed by the shareholders' meeting.

(Revised as of October 26, 2022 by the Board of Directors' resolution)

The Remuneration Committee is a part of a good corporate governance system. The duties of the Remuneration Committee are to recommend remunerations of the Board of Directors and its sub-committees, propose them to the Board of Directors for approval at the general meeting of shareholders, and recommend the compensation of top executives of SCG for the Board of Directors' approval. The Board of Directors has thus resolved to adopt this Charter of the Remuneration Committee so that every member of the Remuneration Committee is aware of his/her duties and responsibilities and performs them correctly and completely.

1. Scope of Duties

The duties of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

- 1.1 Recommend the policy on SCG Management Remuneration including salary and annual bonus, in line with the Company's operating results and the performance of each SCG top executive. Whenever it deems appropriate, the Committee shall consider hiring of consulting firms to advise on project implementation.
- 1.2 Assess the performance of the President & CEO on an annual basis in order to determine his/her remuneration before proposing the Board of Directors for approval.
- 1.3 Assess the performance of each SCG top executive on an annual basis, based on the recommendation of President & CEO, in order to determine his/her remuneration before proposing the Board of Directors for approval.
- 1.4 Consider the salary structure, the annual budget for the salary increase and bonus of top executives including changes of wage and compensation of SCG top executives before proposing to the Board of Directors.
- 1.5 Review, study, and track regularly the changes and trends in remuneration for SCG top executives in order to propose for the approval of the Board of Directors.
- 1.6 Consider the remuneration of SCG top executives, as compared to the remuneration offered by other listed companies operating in the same business, to ensure that SCG retains its leadership in that industry and to motivate them to foster the Company's continuing development.
- 1.7 Recommend a succession plan of the Company's President & CEO and the top executives to the Board of Directors for consideration.
- 1.8 Report regularly a progress and performance results to the Board of Directors after every meeting of the Remuneration Committee.
- 1.9 Assess the performance of the Remuneration Committee and report the assessment results to the Board of Directors for acknowledgement.
- 1.10 Review and recommend for the Board of Directors' approval if there may be any alteration to the Charter of the Remuneration Committee in keeping it applicable and up-to-date.
- 1.11 Perform other duties as assigned by the Board of Directors.

To fulfill its duties under its scope of authority, the Remuneration Committee is authorized to call for and order the management, heads of offices or employees concerned to give opinions, attend meetings or submit necessary documents. In addition, the committee may seek external consultation from independent consultants or experts in various fields, as deemed necessary and appropriate, at the Company's expense.

2. Composition of the Remuneration Committee

The compositions of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

- 2.1 The Remuneration Committee consists of not less than 3 members.
- 2.2 The members of the Remuneration Committee must be appointed by the Board of Directors.
- 2.3 The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee may be appointed by either The Board of Directors and The Remuneration Committee.

3. Qualifications of the Remuneration Committee

- 3.1 Shall be the Company directors.
- 3.2 Shall have wide-ranging vision, and keep updated with changes of the Company's performances for

further improvement of SCG's guideline on remuneration determination.

3.3 Shall be able to independently perform his/her duties, express opinions, report on the performance of the assigned duties, and devote sufficient time to perform his/her duties.

4. Terms of Office

The term of office of the members of the Remuneration Committee is 3- year each, ending at the annual general meeting of shareholders. A retiring member is eligible for re-appointment.

Apart from the vacancy upon the expiration as aforementioned, a member of the Remuneration Committee shall vacate office when:

- 1) he/she resigns;
- 2) he/she is no longer qualified for the office of the Remuneration Committee as specified in this Charter;
- 3) the Board of Directors passes a resolution removing him/her from office.

If a member of the Remuneration Committee wishes to resign, he/she shall give notice of resignation to the Chairman of the Company's Board of Directors. The resignation shall be effective from the date on which the Chairman of the Company's Board of Directors receives the resignation letter.

In case of vacancies of all members in the Remuneration Committee, the said Remuneration Committee may perform any act in the name of the Remuneration Committee until a new Remuneration Committee takes over the duties.

In case of a vacancy in the Remuneration Committee for reason other than expiration of the term of office, the Board of Directors shall elect a person who is fully qualified as a substitute member of the Remuneration Committee so that the number of members of the Remuneration Committee remains in full as the Board of Directors had stipulated. The substitute member shall hold office only for the remaining term of office of the member whom he/she replaces.

5. Meetings

Meetings of the Remuneration Committee are to be called whenever the Committee or the Chairman of the Committee sees fit. There shall be at least 5 meetings per year.

In calling a meeting of the Remuneration Committee, the Chairman or the Secretary to the Remuneration Committee, by order of the Chairman, shall serve a written notice calling for such meeting to members of the Remuneration Committee not less than 3 days prior to the date of the meeting. Where it is necessary or urgent, the meeting may be called by other methods and an earlier meeting date may be choosing. In a meeting of the Remuneration Committee, the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee or the chairman of the meeting may choose to conduct the meeting electronically according to defined criteria and methods to enable discussions and exchange of opinions among attendees who may not be in the same location.

The Remuneration Committee should hold meetings to discuss matters within its scope of duties.

6. **Quorum**

At a meeting of the Remuneration Committee at least half the number of the members of the Remuneration Committee must attend to constitute a quorum. In case the Chairman is absent or unable to perform his/her duty, the Remuneration Committee shall appoint a member who is attending the meeting to perform the duty on behalf of the Chairman.

Decisions in the meeting shall be made by a simple majority vote. Each member of the Remuneration Committee is entitled to one vote. In the event of tie vote, the Chairman of the meeting shall have a casting vote. The member of the Remuneration Committee who has a conflict of interest in any matter, he/she shall not be entitled to vote on such matter.

Resolutions of the Remuneration Committee may be made without meeting, and shall be deemed valid as if they were made at the meeting, when all members of the Remuneration Committee have adopted it by their signatures.

7. Remuneration

The Remuneration Committee shall be paid a remuneration, the amount of which shall be approved at the general meeting of shareholders.

CHARTER OF THE CSR COMMITTEE FOR SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

(Revised as of October 26, 2022 by the Board of Directors' resolution)

SCG pledges its commitment to carrying out socially-responsible activities to uplift the quality of life for the community and society where SCG has operations. Emphasis is placed on empowering communities to become more self-reliant and be able to keep pace with changes in a balancing manner. Thus, the Board of Directors has resolved to adopt this Charter of the CSR Committee for Sustainable Development (CSR for SD Committee) so that every member of the CSR for SD Committee is aware of his/her duties and responsibilities and performs them correctly and completely.

1. Scope of Duties

The duties of the CSR for SD Committee are as follows:

- 1.1 Define the policy, strategy, goal, direction and budget for socially-responsible activities and propose to the Board of Directors for approval on a yearly basis.
- 1.2 Govern and provide advice on the strategy to ensure the effective and efficient implementation of policy and plan.
- 1.3 Ensure the engagement with shareholders on SCG's corporate social responsibility activities.
- 1.4 Follow up to ensure that the policy implementation is effectiveness according to policies, target setting and plans by the Company's Board of Directors and the CSR for SD Committee.
- 1.5 Report regularly a progress and performance to the Board of Directors after every meeting of the CSR for SD Committee.
- 1.6 Review the performance appraisal of the CSR for SD Committee and report the performance results to the Board of Directors.
- 1.7 Review and recommend the revision of the Charter of the CSR for SD Committee to the Board of Directors for approval in order that the Charter retains its appropriateness and up-to-date.
- 1.8 Perform other duties as assigned by the Board of Directors.

To fulfill its duties under its scope of authority, the CSR for SD Committee is authorized to call for and order management, heads of offices, or employees concerned to present opinions, attend meetings, or submit necessary documents. In addition, the CSR for SD Committee may seek external consultation from independent consultants or experts in various fields, as deemed necessary and appropriate, at the Company's expense.

The expenses related to the performing duties of the CSR for SD Committee shall be paid by the Company.

2. Composition of the CSR Committee for Sustainable Development

The compositions of the CSR for SD Committee are to be as follows:

- 2.1 The CSR for SD Committee consists of not less than 3 members from the Board of Directors and 3 members from SCG Management. The President of SCG shall be presumed as a member of the CSR for SD Committee by position.
- 2.2 The members of the CSR for SD Committee shall be appointed by the Board of Directors.
- 2.3 The Chairman of CSR for SD Committee may be appointed by either the Board of Directors and the CSR for SD Committee.

3. Qualifications of the CSR for SD Committee

- 3.1 Shall be Company directors or executives as may deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors.
- 3.2 Shall possess knowledge and good understandings on socially-responsible practices and sustainable development.
- 3.3 Shall have wide vision, and keep updated continuously with international movement towards responsible practices and sustainable development for further improvement of SCG's CSR for sustainable development policy.
- 3.4 Shall be able to independently perform his/her duties, express opinions, report on the performance of the assigned duties, and devote sufficient time to perform.

4. Terms of Office

The term of office of the members of the CSR for SD Committee is 3-year each, ending at the annual general meeting of shareholders. Nevertheless, a retiring member is eligible for re-appointment.

Apart from the vacancy upon the expiration as aforementioned, a member of the CSR for SD Committee shall

vacate office when:

- 1) he/she resigns;
- 2) he/she is no longer qualified for the office of the CSR for SD Committee, as specified in this charter;
- 3) the Board of Directors passes a resolution removing him/her from office.

If a member of the CSR for SD Committee wishes to resign, he/she shall give a notice of resignation to the Chairman of the Company's Board of Directors. The resignation shall be effective from the date on which the Chairman of the Company's Board of Directors receives the resignation letter.

In case of vacancies of all members in the CSR for SD Committee, the said CSR for SD Committee may perform any act in the name of the CSR for SD Committee only in matters necessary until a new CSR for SD Committee takes over the duties.

In case of a vacancy in the CSR for SD Committee for reason other than expiration of the term of office, the Board of Directors shall elect a person who is fully qualified as a substitute member of the CSR for SD Committee so that the number of members of the CSR for SD Committee remains in full as the Board of Directors had stipulated. The substitute member shall hold office only for the remaining term of office of the member whom he/she replaces.

5. Meetings

Meetings of the CSR for SD Committee are to be called whenever the Committee or the Chairman of the Committee sees fit. There must be at least 4 meetings per year.

In calling a meeting of the CSR for SD Committee, the Chairman or the Secretary of the CSR for SD Committee, by order of the Chairman, shall serve a written notice calling for such meeting to members of the CSR for SD Committee not less than 3 days prior to the date of the meeting. Where it is necessary or urgent, the meeting may be called via electronic or by other methods and an earlier meeting date may be choosing.

In a meeting of the CSR for SD Committee, the Chairman of the CSR for SD Committee or the chairman of the meeting may choose to conduct the meeting electronically according to defined criteria and methods to enable discussions and exchange of opinions among attendees who may not be in the same location. The CSR for SD Committee should hold meetings to discuss matters within its scope of duties.

6. Quorum

At a meeting of the CSR for SD Committee at least half the number of the members of the CSR for SD Committee must attend to constitute a quorum. In case the Chairman is absent or unable to perform his/her duty, the CSR for SD Committee shall appoint a member who is attending the meeting to perform the duty on behalf of the Chairman.

Decisions in the meeting shall be made by a simple majority vote. Each member of the CSR for SD Committee is entitled to one vote. In the event of tie vote, the Chairman of the meeting shall have a casting vote. The member of the CSR for SD Committee who has an interest in any matter, he/she shall not be entitled to vote on such matter.

Resolutions of the CSR for SD Committee may be made without meeting, and shall be deemed valid as if they were made at the meeting, when all members of the CSR for SD Committee have adopted it by their signatures.

7. Remuneration

The CSR for SD Committee is dedicated to perform duties without remuneration.

CHARTER OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

(Revised as of July 24, 2024 by the Board of Directors' resolution)

SCG strives towards achieving a low-carbon society in the long term. To this end, it has set a target to achieve net-zero emissions by 2050 and reduce greenhouse gas emissions by 25% by 2030 through the Inclusive Green Growth approach in order to create business growth alongside environmental protection, foster collaboration, and provide opportunities for all sectors. Therefore, it is necessary for the Board of Directors to ensure good corporate governance in the setting of directions, policies, and strategies so as to ensure that SCG operates in

accordance with such goals and foster sustainable value for all stakeholders involved.

1. Scope of Duties

To achieve net-zero emissions by 2050 and reduce greenhouse gas emissions by 25% by 2030 with maximum effectiveness, the Environmental Sustainability Development Committee plays a vital role in overseeing and supporting the operations of the Management as well as in coordinating and fostering mutual understanding among sub-committees to ensure alignment with the Company's Inclusive Green Growth strategy and policy. The key scope of duties and responsibilities of the Environmental Sustainability Development Committee are as follows:

- Establish directions, policies, and strategies to drive SCG towards its goals; consider and provide recommendations to ensure the implementation of the SCG Net Zero Roadmap in order to bring about organizational transformation at all levels and ensure that policies are comprehensively implemented and connected to all company activities and that key issues regarding both risks and opportunities involved in a transition to a green and sustainable economy are integrated into core business strategies; accelerate the adoption of eco-friendly and sustainable alternative energy throughout the value chain; develop green technologies and innovations, low-carbon production processes, products, services, and solutions; enhance personnel capabilities; and promote a work culture that meshes with organizational transformation.
- Oversee, monitor, and review policies, plans, goals, and performance according to the SCG Net Zero Roadmap to ensure efficiency and effectiveness in reducing greenhouse gas emissions; put in place an accurate, transparent, and verifiable data system that complies with international standards for measurement, reporting, and verification; as well as review and approve the disclosure of information to stakeholders and ensure transparent stakeholder engagement.
- Provide recommendations to the Board of Directors, sub-committees, and the Management to
 promote both internal and external cooperation through various company activities, which will lead to
 systemic changes that can propel widespread impact in advancing toward a low-carbon society.

2. Composition of the Environmental Sustainability Development Committee

The Environmental Sustainability Development Committee shall be composed as follows:

- 2.1 The Environmental Sustainability Development Committee must consist of no fewer than three members.
- 2.2 Members of the Environmental Sustainability Development Committee must be appointed by the Board of Directors.
- 2.3 The Board of Directors shall appoint one member as the Chairman. The Chairman of the Environmental Sustainability Development Committee shall be an independent director so as to help ensure the committee performs its duties independently.
- 2.4 The Environmental Sustainability Development Committee shall appoint a secretary to assist with operations related to meeting scheduling, preparing meeting agendas, sending meeting documents, and preparing meeting minutes.

3. Qualifications of the Environmental Sustainability Development Committee Members

- 3.1 Be an independent director or a member of the Management as deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors.
- 3.2 Possess extensive knowledge and understanding of environmental sustainability development.
- 3.3 Possess a comprehensive vision and continuously monitor global changes in environmental sustainability development to improve SCG's overall environmental sustainability development policy.
- 3.4 Be able to perform duties, express opinions, and report performance results as assigned independently, and be able to dedicate sufficient time to their duties.

4. Terms of Office

The Environmental Sustainability Development Committee members shall have a term of office equal to their term as company directors, expiring at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders when their directorship term ends. Nevertheless, a retiring member is eligible for re-appointment. In addition to the expiration of the term mentioned above, a member of the Environmental Sustainability

Development Committee shall vacate office when:

- 1) he/she resigns;
- 2) he/she is no longer qualified as a member of the Environmental Sustainability Development Committee as specified in this Charter;
- 3) the Board of Directors passes a resolution removing him/her from office.

Any member of the Environmental Sustainability Development Committee wishing to resign shall give a notice of resignation to the Chairman of the Board of Directors. The resignation shall be effective from the date on which the Chairman of the Board of Directors receives the resignation letter. In case the entire Environmental Sustainability Development Committee vacates office, the outgoing committee shall remain in office to continue operations until a new committee takes over. In case a position in the Environmental Sustainability Development Committee becomes vacant for reasons other than expiration of the term of office, the Board of Directors shall elect a qualified person as a replacement member so that the committee maintains the number of members prescribed by the Board of Directors. The replacement member shall hold office only for the remaining term of the member he/she replaces.

5. Meetings

The Environmental Sustainability Development Committee shall meet with the Management to exchange information and ensure alignment between the committee's oversight and SCG's operations. These meetings will be held as deemed necessary or appropriate by the Environmental Sustainability Development Committee or its Chairman. The key management participants include:

- 1) President of SCG Smart Living Business
- 2) President of SCG Cement and Green Solution Business
- 3) Chief Executive Officer and President of SCG Chemicals Public Company Limited
- 4) Chief Executive Officer of SCG Packaging Public Company Limited
- 5) Managing Director of SCG Trading Public Company Limited

However, at least two meetings per year shall be convened, with the following main agenda items:

- Progress on greenhouse gas emission reduction plans according to the SCG Net Zero Roadmap, which
 aims to reduce emissions by 25% by 2030 and achieve net-zero emissions by 2050; as well as
 investments, returns, effectiveness of greenhouse gas emission reduction, and enhancement of
 technological capabilities and knowledge.
- Collaboration with the government, private sector, and civil society to drive a transition to a low-carbon society and climate resilience.
- Disclosure of sustainability data according to international practices; preparation for data collection, reporting, and verification (MRV) to ensure compliance with future rules, regulations, and requirements; as well as the use of digital technology to improve data management for increased accuracy, transparency, speed, and compatibility with international sustainability standards.

6. Minutes of the Environmental Sustainability Development Committee Meetings

The Environmental Sustainability Development Committee or its designated individual is responsible for preparing the minutes of its meetings and distributing them to committee members for review in advance before the minutes are presented for approval as the first agenda item of the next meeting and signed by the meeting chairman to certify their accuracy. Committee members can express their opinions and request amendments to ensure that the minutes are sufficiently detailed and accurate. The minutes shall be approved by the committee, and the chairperson of the committee shall report the meeting results to the Board of Directors to keep them informed of the committee's activities.

7. Remuneration

The Environmental Sustainability Development Committee shall perform its duties without any remuneration.

CHARTER OF THE INTERNAL AUDIT OFFICE

(Revised as of August 11, 2022 by Audit Committee's resolution)

This charter has been prepared for the purpose of establishing the mission, scope of work, authority, and duties and responsibilities, as well as the operational guidelines and practices, of the Internal Audit Office of the Siam Cement Public Company Limited and ensuring understanding among the Board of Directors, the Management Committee, and employees of all levels of SCG on the following issues in summary:

Mission

To augment and protect the value of the organization by providing risk assurance and recommendations with impartiality.

Objectives

Article 1 To render assurance services and consulting services independently and impartially.

Article 2 To help SCG's business operations meet the established objectives through the assessment and improvement of the effectiveness and efficiency of the risk management system, internal control, and corporate governance process using a systematic and structured approach.

Duties and Responsibilities

The Internal Audit Office shall have the following duties:

Governance, risk management, operational supervision, and internal control

- 1. Ensuring that financial reports are prepared in accordance with Thai and international financial reporting standards; that there is a process for preparing account records and evidence thereof that are accurate, complete, transparent, and reliable; and that there is sufficient disclosure of information in the notes to financial statements, as well as considering the impact of changes in accounting standards and the selection of accounting policies for the Audit Committee.
- 2. Reviewing connected transactions, acquisition and disposition of assets, or transactions that may constitute conflicts of interest to ensure compliance with the laws and regulations of the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand.
- 3. Assessing the risk management system and encouraging companies under SCG to perform risk management in accordance with international standards so as to identify and efficiently manage key risks; establishing appropriate key risk indicators and risk signals; and ensuring the correctness and effectiveness of procedures for operation, risk management, control, governance, and information and communication network security in compliance with international standards.
- 4. Assessing the effectiveness of initiatives to foster awareness; reviewing risk assessment, internal control, preventive work system development, and auditing; providing suggestions for establishing preventive measures and guidelines; and reviewing self-assessments on anti-corruption measures to ensure compliance with the guidelines of various regulatory agencies, such as the Thai Private Sector Collective Action Coalition Against Corruption (CAC), the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD), and the National Anti-Corruption Commission; as well as proposing a review of the Anti-corruption Policy to the Audit Committee to ensure suitability and compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.
- 5. Auditing the work process to ensure accordance with good corporate governance.
- 6. Auditing control and compliance processes in accordance with securities and exchange laws, rules, regulations, and other laws relevant to the Company's business.
- 7. Assessing the internal control system to ensure that the significant business activities of SCG are conducted with an appropriate and adequate internal control system to prevent substantial damage and assessing the overall internal control system of the audited companies in accordance with the guidelines of the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).
- 8. Auditing fraud and complaints to ensure compliance with laws and regulations, establishing guidelines for the rectification and prevention of fraud, and proposing a review of policy for receiving complaints of fraud and misconduct to the Audit Committee to ensure suitability and adequacy for business operations.
- 9. Establishing and developing a preventive system and audit method to foster beneficial preventive operations in companies under SCG and add value to the organization in a way that fulfills the objectives effectively and efficiently and complies with the Company's rules and regulations as well as laws governing securities and

exchange and other relevant laws.

Others

- 10. Proposing the appointment of the Company's auditor to the Audit Committee and the remuneration thereof, coordinating with the auditor regarding the exchange of information relevant to the audit, and attending a meeting with the auditor without the presence of management at least once a year.
- 11. Preparing the Audit Committee Report for the Chair of the Audit Committee to review and sign for disclosure in the Company's annual report.
- 12. Planning and proposing the budget and staffing of the Internal Audit Office to the Audit Committee for approval.
- 13. The Director of the Internal Audit Office is responsible for seeking out the opinions of independent advisors of other professions at the expense of the Company should such consultation be necessary for the benefit of considering and providing comments on the Company's operations.
- 14. Arranging for an annual performance assessment of the Audit Committee and its members.
- 15. Reviewing the Charter of the Internal Audit Office to ensure consistency with the Charter of the Audit Committee at least once a year for submission to the Board of Directors for approval.
- 16. Performing any other duties as required by law or as assigned by the Board of Directors or the Audit Committee.

Scope of Audit

The Internal Audit Office is responsible for the internal auditing of the Company and its subsidiaries according to the consolidated financial statements of SCG. In the case that the subsidiary is a SET-listed company or has its own audit committee, internal auditing of the subsidiary and any other companies within its group will be undertaken by the subsidiary's own Internal Audit Office with supervision by the Company's Internal Audit Office via various reports submitted by the subsidiary. Joint ventures and other companies will be audited upon assignment by the Audit Committee or the senior management of each business or in the case of unusual events to ensure that SCG's risk management, internal control, and corporate governance systems are sufficient, efficient, and aligned with the established objectives. The Internal Audit Office also participates in proposing improvements in all aspects, such as administrative control, profit opportunity, and reputation and image in the following ways:

- 1. Identifying risk factors and undertaking risk assessment and appropriate risk management.
- 2. Ensuring appropriate and efficient internal audit by
 - 2.1 Providing accurate and reliable information on finances, administration, and significant operations in a timely manner;
 - 2.2 Complying with policies, standards, and regulations, including relevant laws and rules;
 - 2.3 Operating with efficiency and effectiveness;
 - 2.4 Procuring assets economically and using them effectively under adequate supervision and prevention.

Audit Authority

The Director of the Internal Audit Office and the auditors are authorized to gain access to any information, work system, and personnel of SCG related to the audit as deemed necessary and appropriate. It is the duty of the management at all levels in companies under SCG to support the work of the Internal Audit Office to meet the objectives of the audit and ensure the utmost benefits to SCG.

Any document and information received or obtained by the auditors will be kept confidential and will not be disclosed to any other party without permission from relevant authorities unless the disclosure is required by the law.

Reporting and Follow-Up of Audit Results

- 1. The Director of the Internal Audit Office is responsible for ensuring through supervision and management that the audit has been performed according to the audit plan and arranging for the audit reports to be prepared and presented to the SCG Management Committee and Audit Committee. As for administration work, the Director of the Internal Audit Office will report to the Vice President Finance and Investment.
- 2. The Director of the Internal Audit Office is responsible for establishing and supervising a system for following up on the results of the audit and creating a preventive work system.

<u>Independence and Impartiality</u>

- 1. Audit activities, including scope, process, time frame, and the content of audit reports, must be independent from any influence to ensure that the performance of the audit is effective and fulfills the objectives and the audit plan.
- 2. The Director of the Internal Audit Office and the auditors must have neutral, unbiased, and unprejudiced attitudes and avoid conflicts of interest.
- 3. The Director of the Internal Audit Office and the auditors should recuse themselves from auditing work for which they were previously responsible. If a senior auditor or auditor provides assurance of activities they were responsible for in the past year, this action may be regarded as compromising impartiality.
- 4. In the event that independence or impartiality is compromised, details of the circumstance should be disclosed to the relevant parties as deemed appropriate. The nature of the disclosure depends on the nature of the circumstance constituting a compromise of impartiality.

Qualifications of Internal Auditors

- 1. Possess knowledge, ability, and expertise in performing audit work.
- 2. Possess knowledge and understanding of the principles of good corporate governance, risk management, laws, regulations, rules, and ordinances; information technology auditors must also have knowledge of IT control and techniques for IT auditing.
- 3. Continuously develop professional knowledge and competence and the effectiveness and quality of internal audit work
- 4. Possess good interpersonal skills, be courteous, listen to the opinions of others, and provide recommendations which are beneficial and in line with international standards to SCG.
- 5. Be independent and have no stake in the matter being audited.

Code of Ethics

Internal auditors must perform their duties in accordance with the Internal Auditor Code of Ethics, which consists of the following five factors:

- 1. Integrity
- 2. Objectivity
- 3. Confidentiality
- 4. Competency
- 5. Transparency

Standards of Professional Practice

The Internal Audit Office must perform its duties in accordance with international standards for the professional practice of internal auditing.

Part 3

Policies related to Compliance with SCG Corporate Governance

_ • • •



Part 3: Policies related to Compliance with SCG Corporate Governance Principles

3.1 Policies and Guidelines on the Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and the Management

Policy on Director Qualifications and Nomination

Principle

In accordance with SCG Corporate Governance Principle, director nomination and selection is of paramount importance as the Board of Directors plays a critical role in formulating strategies and business directions for the sustainable growth of SCG. As such, the Board of Directors has deemed it appropriate to establish a Policy on Director Qualifications and Nomination.

2. Policy on Director Qualifications and Nomination

The Board of Directors must be composed of Directors who have all qualifications and possess none of the prohibited characteristics prescribed by the law and the Company's Article of Association, and should consist of a diverse range (Board Diversity) of skills, experiences, knowledge, and expertise beneficial to the Company without any discrimination on the grounds of gender, age, ethnicity, nationality, religion, country of origin, cultural background and tradition, including the proportion of independent directors and women directors must be appropriate and in accordance with the good corporate governance principles, so to enable to the Company to achieve its objectives and business goals and promote a management system guided by SCG Corporate Governance Principle in order to bring about fairness and transparency as well as the ability to generate returns and added values in the long term to shareholders and inspire trust in all stakeholders, all of which will lead SCG towards sustainable growth.

3. Director nomination

The Board of Directors has entrusted the Governance and Nomination Committee with the task of nominating qualified candidates for directorship to replace Directors retiring by rotation or under other circumstances to the Board of Directors and/or the meeting of shareholders for appointment. The Governance and Nomination Committee selects candidates from a pool of qualified individuals with expertise from various disciplines who possess leadership, a breath of vision, integrity and ethics, clear and unblemished career records, as well as the ability to express opinion independently, without any discrimination on the grounds of nationality, ethnicity, gender, and cultural background.

In 2020, in the nomination of qualified candidates to replace directors due to retire by rotation in 2020, the Governance and Nomination Committee selected the qualified candidates without discrimination based on gender, age, ethnicity, nationality, country of origin, skin color, religion, cultural background, or customs, consisting of those nominated by the Company's directors and those listed as IOD's chartered directors, consistent with the Company's policy on director qualifications and nomination.

In addition, the following key components were also taken in the nomination of directors.

3.1. Required qualifications of individual directors

The Governance and Nomination Committee should consider and prescribe a set of qualifications of individual candidates for directorship, such as:

Integrity and accountability

- Ability to make informed judgments
- Maturity, firmness, and the ability to listen well and express independent opinion
- Commitment to principles and professionalism
- Other qualifications as the Governance and Nomination Committee deems vital

3.2 Required knowledge and expertise of the Board of Directors

The Governance and Nomination Committee should prescribe a set of knowledge and expertise requirements for the Board of Directors and formulate a Board Skill Matrix to help inform the selection and nomination of qualified candidates. These requirements should encompass knowledge and areas of expertise that will enhance the ability of the Board of Directors to formulate strategies and policies as well as ensure their effective implementation, such as:

- Accounting and finance
- Organization and human resources management
- Risk management
- Crisis management
- Industry knowledge
- International marketing
- Vision and Strategic planning
- Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Experience
- Knowledge and specializations in areas that the Governance and Nomination Committee believes will become critical in the next 3-5 years, such as E-commerce, Research and Development, and Merger and Acquisition, Technological Skills, Cybersecurity, Data Management, Retail Business, Supply Chain, Health and Safety, and Experiences in Regional and International Organization Management

3.3 Diversity of the Board of Directors

In addition to the two aforementioned factors, the Governance and Selection Committee may consider prescribing other qualification requirements relevant to the diversity of the Board of Directors, such as gender, age, ethnicity, nationality, religion, country of origin, cultural background and tradition.

4. Nomination of Current Directors

If the Governance and Nomination Committee nominates current directors, their performance should be considered.

Nomination and Selection Process of New Directors

As leaders of the organization, directors have crucial roles, duties, and responsibilities. To ensure that the nomination and selection of directors follows clearly defined steps and is characterized by systematicity, transparency, and alignment with the Company's policy on director qualifications and nomination as well as SCG Corporate Governance Principle so as to obtain candidates who with qualifications, expertise, skills, and experiences in accordance with the Company's strategies, the Board of Directors, on the suggestion of the Governance and Nomination Committee

- Prior to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the Governance and Nomination Committee proposes to
 the Board the names of persons to replace directors to be retired by rotation. The nominees will then be listed
 for consideration for election during the Meeting. All shareholders have an equal right to propose other
 candidates. Authority to select directors' rests with shareholders.
- 2. A shareholder shall have one vote for each share he holds or represents.
- 3. At the election of Directors, the shareholders shall vote for each individual candidate nominated for Directors, but not exceeding the number of Directors required for that election. The vote shall not be distributed.
- 4. The candidates shall be ranked in descending order from the highest number of votes received to the lowest, and shall be appointed as directors in that order until all of the director positions are filled. If the votes cast for the candidates in descending order are tied, which would otherwise cause the number of directors to be exceeded, the chairman of the Meeting shall cast the deciding vote.

Qualifications of Independent Directors of the Company

The Company's qualifications for independent directors were revised on July 26, 2019 to be more stringent than those prescribed by the Capital Market Supervisory Board. The Company's qualifications of Independent Directors are as follows:

- 1. Shall not hold shares exceeding 0.5% of the total number of voting shares of the Company, its parent company, subsidiary, associate, major shareholder or controlling person, including shares held by related persons of such independent director.
- 2. Shall neither be nor have ever been a director with management authority, employee, staff member, advisor who receives a salary or is a controlling person of the Company, its parent company, subsidiary, associate, same-tier subsidiary company, major shareholder or controlling person unless the foregoing status has ended not less than 2 years prior to the date of becoming a director. Such prohibitions shall not, however, include cases where the independent director previously served as a government officer or an advisor to a government agency which is a major shareholder or controlling person of the Company.
- 3. Shall not be a person related by blood or legal registration as father, mother, spouse, sibling, or child, including spouse of child of other directors, of an executive, major shareholder, controlling person, or person to be nominated as director, executive or controlling person of the Company or its subsidiary.
- 4. Shall neither have nor have ever had a business relationship with the Company, its parent company, subsidiary, associate, major shareholder or controlling person, in a manner that may interfere with his/her independent judgment, and neither is nor has ever been a significant shareholder or controlling person of any person having a business relationship with the Company, its parent company, subsidiary, associate, major shareholder or controlling person, unless the foregoing relationship has ended not less than 2 years prior to the date of becoming an independent director.

The term 'business relationship' in the preceding paragraph shall include any normal business transaction, rental or lease of immovable property, transaction relating to assets or services or granting or receipt of financial assistance through receiving or extending loans, guarantees, providing assets as collateral, and any other similar actions, which result in the applicant or his/her counterparty being subject to indebtedness payable to the other party in the amount of 3% or more of the net tangible assets of the applicant or twenty million baht or more, whichever is lower. The amount of such indebtedness shall be calculated according

to the method for calculation of value of connected transactions under the Notification of the Capital Market Supervisory Board governing rules on connected transactions mutatis mutandis. The consideration of such indebtedness shall include indebtedness incurred during the period of 1 year prior to the date on which the business relationship with the person commences.

- 5. Shall not be nor have ever been an auditor of the Company, its parent company, subsidiary, associate, major shareholder or controlling person, and not be a significant shareholder, controlling person, or partner of an audit firm which employs auditors of the Company, its parent company, subsidiary, associate, major shareholder or controlling person, unless the foregoing relationship has ended not less than 2 years prior to the date of becoming an independent director.
- 6. Shall not be nor have ever been a provider of any professional services including legal advisor or financial advisor who receives service fees exceeding 2 million baht per year from the Company, its parent company, subsidiary, associate, major shareholder or controlling person, and not be a significant shareholder, controlling person or partner of the provider of professional services, unless the foregoing relationship has ended not less than 2 years prior to the date of becoming an independent director.
- 7. Shall not be a director appointed as representative of the Board of Directors, major shareholder or shareholder who is related to a major shareholder of the Company.
- 8. Shall not undertake any business in the same nature and in competition with the business of the Company or its subsidiary, nor be a significant partner in a partnership or director with management authority, employee, staff member or advisor who receives salary or holds shares exceeding 1% of the total number of shares with voting rights of another company which undertakes business in the same nature and in competition with the business of the Company or its subsidiary.
- 9. Shall be able to attend meetings of the Board of Directors and make independent judgment.
- 10. Shall not have any other characteristic that limits his or her ability to express independent opinions regarding the Company's operations.
- 11. Shall be able to look after the interests of all shareholders equally.
- 12. Shall be able to prevent conflicts of interest.
- 13. Shall not have been convicted of violating security or stock exchange laws, financial institution laws, life insurance laws, general insurance laws, anti-money laundering laws or any other financial law of a similar nature, whether Thai or foreign, by an agency with authority under that certain law. Such wrongful acts include those involved with unfair trading in shares or perpetration of deception, fraud, or corruption.

After being appointed as an independent director with all qualification items 1-13 specified above, such independent director may be assigned by the Board of Directors to make decisions relating to business operations of the Company, its parent company, subsidiary, associate, same-tier subsidiary or any juristic person which may have a conflict of interest on the basis of collective decision, whereby such actions of the independent director are not deemed partaking of management.

In case that the appointed independent director is the person who has or used to have a business relationship, or provision of professional services at a value exceeding the specified amount under item 4 or 6, the Company

shall be granted an exemption from such prohibition of having or having had a business relationship or provision of professional services at such excessive value, provided that the Company has obtained an opinion of the Board of Directors indicating that after a consideration in accordance with Section 89/7 of the Securities and Exchange Act, the appointment of such person does not affect the performance of duties and the giving of independent opinions, and that the relevant information is disclosed in the notice of shareholders' meeting under the agenda of the appointment of an independent director.

Policy on the Target Share of the Independent Directors on the Board

To strengthen the board composition on the principles of transparency, diversity and sufficient number of independent directors in order to ensure the Board capacity in overseeing the interest of the Company and every shareholder equitably, the Board of Directors has determined that the proportion of independent directors shall not be less than half of total number of the board members.

Policy on Limitation of the Number of Listed Companies Where Directors May Hold Directorship

To encourage the Company's directors to dedicate their time to fulfilling their duties efficiently, the Board of Directors has stipulated that each director shall hold directorship in no more than a total of four other listed companies apart from SCG on The Stock Exchange of Thailand.

Policy and Guidelines on SCG Top Executive's Directorship in Organizations outside SCG

The Board of Directors has established a policy allowing the President & CEO and the Company's management to hold a directorship in companies that are not SCG subsidiaries or associates or to spend the Company work hours carrying out directorships for external institutes for the three following organizations:

- (1) Governmental organizations that are not established for the benefit of a political party, in which their service represents their cooperation with the authorities and contribution to the general public.
- (2) Private organizations that are established for the benefit of the general public such as the Federation of Thai Industries, the Thai Chamber of Commerce, the Thailand Management Association, etc.
- (3) Private organizations that are established for trading purposes but present no conflicts of interest with SCG and do not consume time to the extent that it is disadvantageous for the Company.

The President & CEO is to propose a directorship in other companies or external institutes for approval from the Board of Directors. As for management employees, the proposal must be submitted for approval in accordance with the Company's Approval Authority, in which case the proposal will be reviewed with consideration to the Company's intent to ensure that its employees demonstrate determination and effort and dedicate their working hours to their duties at the Company to the best of their ability, as well as adhere to the ethical guidelines regarding conflicts of interest, whereby employees do not engage in a conduct that constitutes a competitive with the Company's business. The approval of directorships or the use of the Company's working time on duties in external institutes/companies depends on the Company's judgment and is reviewed on a case-by-case basis. In this regard, the Company has informed relevant management employees of the aforementioned policy and process.

Policy on Attendance at the Board of Directors Meetings

To encourage regular board meeting attendance, the Board of Directors has stipulated that each year's board meetings shall be attended by no less than 80 percent of the directors on average and each director shall attend at least 75 percent of the meetings held each year.

Should there arise any circumstances that cause a director to be unable to attend a board meeting, the said director shall inform the chairman of such necessity for absence at the first opportunity and prior to that meeting.

Board meeting attendance under this policy includes meetings via electronic media provided to enable directors who are in different locations to discuss and express their opinions.

The Formulation of a Systematic Director Training and Development Plan

Today's business operations are grappled with intense competition and rapid change of the market and technology. In response to the circumstances and to maintain SCG's growth in a sustainable manner, the Board of Directors, as the leader of the organization, shall continuously enhance their skills, knowledge, competence. The Board of Directors deems it appropriate to establish a structured training and development program for directors in writing as follow:

Step	Activity	Responsible/approval persons	Time frame
1	Determine the number and proportion of directors with	The Governance and	May to June
	skills, knowledge, competence, and experience required	Nomination Committee	
	by the Company. The requirement shall be in accordance		
	with SCG's vision, medium-term business plan, goals,		
	and strategies, including corporate governance, relevant		
	regulations, and laws.		
2	Self-assessment on the following:	Directors	July to August
2.1	Skills, knowledge, competence, and experiences		
	according to the Board Skill Matrix		
2.2	The need to develop knowledge and experience in the		
	matters that support SCG's operations and directors'		
	duty performance		
3	Prepare the following information:	The secretary to the	November to
3.1	Training records and panel discussion participation of	Governance and Nomination	December
	each director.	Committee	
3.2	A table comparing the number/proportion of directors		
	with skills, knowledge, competence, and experience		
	required by the Company vs. the existing ones.		
4	Provide training and development program for directors	The secretary to the	November to
	by focusing on areas the directors are lacking or directors'	Governance and Nomination	December
4.1	topics of interest, as follows:	Committee proposes to the	
	The program for the Board of Directors, e.g., providing a	meeting of the Governance and	
4.2	collection of interesting and useful information, arranging	Nomination Committee for	
	a seminar to foster opinion exchange, and organizing a	consideration before seeking	
	visit or exhibition within SCG.		

Step	Activity	Responsible/approval	Time frame
		persons	
	The program designed for each director such as providing	approval from the Board of	
	training or seminars organized by external agencies	Directors	
5	Proceed with the approved plan	The secretary to the	January to
		Governance and Nomination	December next
		Committee	year
6	Evaluate the performance of the program and seek	The secretary to the	November to
	feedback from the directors for further improvement	Governance and Nomination	December next
		Committee	year

Insider Trading Policy

In the operation of SCG, the Company's directors, executives, employees, and related parties must review and be informed of information that may affect securities prices and cannot be disclosed to shareholders, investors, or the general public. Therefore, the use of insider information requires utmost management to prevent any leakage, misuse, or unfair advantage, which is not only illegal but may also affect the reputation of SCG.

As SCG has several guidelines on insider information management across various documents, such as SCG Code of Conduct, SCG Corporate Governance Principle, SCG Employee Regulations, and other compliance measures, and in 2017, the Board of Directors has approved the compilation of relevant practices and guidelines and the formulation of this insider trading policy in writing for every SCG director, executive, and employee to adopt and communicate accurately.

Definitions

- SCG means Siam Cement Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries according to the consolidated financial statements of Siam Cement Public Company Limited.
- Securities means securities are listed on the Securities Exchange of Thailand or international Securities Exchange, including but not limited to treasury bills, bonds, bills, shares, debentures, investment units which are instruments or evidence representing the rights to the property of a mutual fund, certificates representing the rights to purchase shares, certificates representing the rights to purchase debentures, certificates representing the rights to purchase investment units, derivative and any other instruments under the Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535 (and its amendments) ("Securities Act") or the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission ("Office of SEC").
- Insider Information means the information which has not yet been disclosed to public whose material content could influence changes in securities prices or values.
- Securities transaction means to purchase, sell, transfer or obtain of securities; or to enter into, purchase or

sell derivatives issued by listed companies.

Policy

- 1. SCG is committed to complying with laws relevant to insider trading in every country SCG operates or plans to conduct business.
- 2. Any SCG director, executive, employee, or any external party who is privy to or is in possession of insider information through their duties:
 - 2.1 maintain insider information of SCG with due care and safe in order to prevent its leakage.
 - 2.2 not disclose insider information of SCG whether directly or indirectly to any other person not being engaged with assigned work in order to prevent usage of insider information for benefits of such person or others.

This is because such actions may affect the prices or value of the securities of SCG's listed companies or other listed companies related to the insider information or may influence investment-related decisions.

- 3. Any director, executive, employee, or any external party who is privy to or is in possession of insider information through their duties must not purchase or sale securities related to insider information that has not been publicly disclosed, which would create an unfair advantage over other traders who are not aware of such information.
- 4. Any director, executive and employee working in the division relating to insider information, including the spouses or cohabiting couple and minor children of those provided with access to insider information, must comply with the Blackout Period measurement as prescribed in this policy to prevent them from the risk of wrongful use of insider information.
- 5. In case the Company's directors, executives, and persons holding an executive position in accounting or finance at a divisional manager or equivalent level, including their spouses or cohabiting couple, minor children and juristic persons under the relevant Securities Act, Notifications of the Office of SEC, and Notifications of the Capital Market Supervisory Board, wish to engage in a securities transaction, it is in their duty to notify the Company Secretary at least one day before conducting such a transaction. For the directors or executives whose spouses or cohabiting couple are also directors or executives of the same listed company, only one person is required to submit a notification.
- 6. SCG must put in place an internal information management system to prevent any possible leakage and the use of insider information in purchasing or selling securities for private interests or personal interests of others.
- 7. The directors, executives and employees of SCG have their own duties to strictly comply with their charters, SCG Code of Conduct, SCG Corporate Governance Principles, Delegation of Authority, related disclosure policies of SCG, Guideline for the Use of Inside Information as well as the rule of using "Securities Act" and Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535 (and its amendments) and other applicable rules.
- 8. Any director, executive and employee of SCG who does not comply with this policy and Insider Trading Guideline is considered breaching of code of conduct and breaking discipline and subject to punishment including those

prescribed by laws if it is breach of laws.

Blackout Period Measurement

The Company's directors, executives including persons holding an executive position in accounting or finance at a divisional manager or equivalent level, employees of the offices relating to insider information including their spouse or cohabiting couple knowing insider information are prohibited from trading the securities of the Company or other listed companies relating to insider information during a period of one (1) month before disclosure of any quarter and annual financial statements and within 24 hours after such disclosure.

Moreover, the Company's directors, executives, employees of the offices relating to insider information including their spouse or cohabiting couple knowing insider information of the Company or other listed companies relating to insider information are prohibited from trading the securities of said companies until after 24 hours from the time of disclosure of all said insider information to public.

Reporting of Holding and Changing of Holding of Securities and Derivatives

- 1. The Company will provide knowledge to the board of directors and executives of the Company including persons holding an executive position in accounting or finance at a divisional manager or equivalent level regarding their duties on preparing, disclosing and submitting the reports on their holding and changing of holding of securities and derivatives, and their spouse or cohabiting couple and minor children including the holding of securities and derivatives, and the change to such holding, by a juristic person whose shares exceeding 30 percent of the total voting rights are held by the board of directors and executives of the Company, the spouse or cohabiting couple, and minor children of such persons to the Office of SEC according to Securities Act, Notification of the Securities and Exchange Commission and applicable notifications of Capital Market Supervisory Board including punishment according to relevant laws.
- 2. The board of directors and executives of the Company including persons holding an executive position in accounting or finance at a divisional manager or equivalent level of the Company must declare their intention to conduct a securities transaction, prepare, disclose and submit the reports on holding and changing of holding of their securities and derivatives and their spouse or cohabiting couple and minor children including juristic persons under Securities Act, Notification of the Securities and Exchange Commission and applicable Notification of the Capital Market Supervisory Board to the Company Secretary before every submitting to the Office of SEC in a form and within the following periods and in compliance with the following procedures:
 - at least one business day in advance of conducting any securities transaction, the aforementioned persons shall declare their intention to the Company Secretary, by way of telephone, e-mail or any other mean. They may consider submitting the Declaration of Intention to Purchase and Sell the Company's Securities Form, and may also declare their intention to conduct a securities transaction issued by the Company's listed subsidiaries.
 - 2.2 within seven (7) working days from the date of purchase, sale, transfer or acceptance of transfer of securities or derivatives in the case where the names of the persons with the duty to report are not listed in the Office of SEC's Directors and Executives Information System, or within three (3) working days in accordance with 2.3.

- 2.3 in the case where the names of the persons with the duty to report are listed in the Office of SEC's Directors and Executives Information System, and in any case other than 2.2, the reporting shall be in accordance with the following regulations:
 - 1) within three (3) working days from the date of purchase, sale, transfer or acceptance of transfer of securities or derivatives worth more than 3 million baht.
 - 2) for securities or derivatives worth less than 3 million baht, the reporting can follow any of the following regulations:
 - 2.1) within three (3) working days from the date of purchase, sale, transfer or acceptance of transfer.
 - 2.2) accumulate every purchase, sale, transfer or acceptance of transfer with a total worth of 3 million bath within six (6) months from the date of the first transaction, and report within three (3) working days from the date that the accumulated value reaches 3 million baht.
 - 2.3) within three (3) working days from the date that marks six (6) months since the first transaction, despite the accumulated value less than 3 million baht.
- 2.4 in case the Company's directors or executives conduct transactions, prepare, disclose, and submit the reports on holding and changing of holding of their securities and derivatives, and their spouses or cohabiting couple are also directors or executives of the same listed company, only one person is required to report.

Maintaining and Protecting Usage of Insider Information

Insider information is deemed a valuable information. Using insider information jointly must be made within assigned duty and responsibility only. Disclosing insider information to public including communicating any information relating to insider information must be agreed by the President & CEO or Vice President-Finance and Investment & CFO or authorized persons only.

3.2 Policies and Guidelines on the Organization Management

Compliance Policy

The Board of Directors has approved the formulation of this compliance policy as guidance for SCG's compliance in the operation and proper decision making. Every SCG employee is expected to fulfill their duties with honesty, integrity and reliability, and in their operation to follow the company's four Core Values, namely "Adherence to Fairness, Dedication to Excellence, Belief in the Value of the Individual and Concern for Social Responsibility", as well as to strictly adhere to best practices in accordance with SCG Code of Conduct. Furthermore, they are also expected to strive to be good citizens of every country where SCG operates to prevent risks that may arise and affect SCG, its directors, executives and employees or undermine the confidence of all stakeholders. Therefore, SCG has issued the following compliance policy.

- Each SCG director, executive and employee shall strive for full compliance with the laws, regulations, orders, articles of association, contractual obligations, business ethics, policies, operational standards, best practices and public commitments in every country where SCG operates.
- 2) Compliance with domestic and international laws is of paramount importance that every SCG director, executive and employee shall respect and comply. Any illegal transactions are thus unacceptable.
- 3) Regulatory compliance constitutes part of the duties that each SCG director, executive, and employee shall fulfill actively, by initiating communications and fostering correct understanding, issuing compliance guidelines and ensuring correct implementation, as well as raising awareness and further fortifying SCG's culture of honesty, integrity and strengthening compliance.
- 4) SCG focuses on the implementation of a compliance management system in the operation to ensure compliance with the laws and key public commitments as prescribed by SCG Risk Management Committee or each business unit, by managing efficient compliance procedures in the operation and constantly improving such procedures to correspond with both internal and external business environment and any changes that may occur.
- 5) Any SCG employee who reports or provides information on an act that is or may constitute a violation of any law or key public commitment will be protected in accordance with SCG Whistleblowing Policy.

Policy for the Appointment of Directors and Executives to Subsidiaries

Rationale

The appointment of directors and executives of a subsidiary to oversee and manage its operation is a key governance mechanism that ensures the subsidiary complies with SCG's policy, goals, vision, medium-term business plans, and strategic growth plans efficiently. As such, the Board of Directors approved the formulation of the policy for the appointment of directors and executives to subsidiaries.

2. The policy for the appointment of directors and executives to subsidiaries

The appointment of directors and executives to a subsidiary should be carried out with due consideration to ensure that the appointed person is qualified and knowledgeable and possesses work ethics, a sense of responsibility, and leadership qualities, all of which will enable them to manage the subsidiary efficiently, create long-term returns and added value for shareholders, inspire confidence in all stakeholders, promote proper auditing and the system of checks and balances in the subsidiary, as well as support the sustainable implementation of the company's policies.

3. The authority to appoint directors and executives to subsidiaries

The Board of Directors has assigned the President & CEO of SCG and/or the President & CEO of each of SCG's core businesses to appoint and transfer the company's representative to the Board or an executive position in a subsidiary as deemed appropriate. Such an appointment or transfer shall be in compliance with relevant conceptual frameworks and the aforementioned policy and shall be reported to the Board of Directors as stipulated in the authority manual.

4. The roles and responsibilities of the persons to be appointed as directors or executives in subsidiaries

- 1) They shall be fully qualified and shall not possess prohibited characteristics stipulated by relevant laws or requirements.
- (2) They shall possess knowledge, competency, and experience beneficial to business operations and suitable for their duties and responsibilities.
- (3) They shall demonstrate leadership and a breadth of vision necessary for the driving and achievement of objectives of SCG's subsidiaries.
- (4) They shall be able to make rational decisions in line with corporate governance guidelines and SCG Code of Conduct.

5. The selection of the persons to be appointed as directors or executives in subsidiaries

The selection of persons to be appointed as directors or executives in subsidiaries should take into consideration their business size and complexity according to the following criteria:

- (1) For a subsidiary which is a holding company with assets worth over 10,000 million baht:
 - An appropriate number of members of SCG's Management Team shall be selected for directorship in the subsidiary, taking into consideration diversity as well as checks and balances. The list should at the very least include SCG's Vice President –Finance and Investment & CFO and may also include no more than one executive officer in Level M4 from SCG.
- (2) For a subsidiary which is a holding company with assets worth over 10,000 million baht:
 - The President & CEO and/or Vice Presidents of the business unit holding shares in the subsidiary shall be appointed as directors. No more than two executive officers in Level M4 may also be appointed to the subsidiary as directors.
- (3) For a subsidiary which is an operating company with assets worth over 10,000 million baht:

 Members of SCG's Management Team shall be selected for directorship in the subsidiary. The list should at the very least include SCG's Vice President –Finance and Investment & CFO, along with the President & CEO and/or Vice Presidents of the business unit holding shares in the subsidiary. Executive officers from Level M4 upwards from the aforementioned business unit may also be appointed to the subsidiary as directors.

(4) For a subsidiary which is an operating company with assets worth 1,000-10,000 million baht:

The President & CEO and/or Vice Presidents of the business unit holding shares in the subsidiary shall be appointed as

directors. Executive officers in Level M3 upwards may also be appointed to the subsidiary as directors.

(5) For a subsidiary which is an operating company with assets worth under 1,000 million baht:

The President & CEO and/or Vice Presidents of the business unit holding shares in the subsidiary shall be appointed as directors. Executive officers in Level M2 upwards may also be appointed to the subsidiary as directors.

In addition to the criteria above, the appointment of such persons shall also take into consideration other unique characteristics and conditions of each subsidiary, such as:

- (1) The status of the company that involves complex or high-risk criteria or requirements, such as the status as a public company listed in the Stock Exchange of Thailand or an overseas stock exchange
- (2) The shareholding percentage in the subsidiary with other joint venture partners, in which case requirements specified in the joint venture agreement shall be taken into account
- (3) Legal requirements of the country in which the subsidiary operates or is established

6. The roles and responsibilities of the persons appointed as directors or executives in subsidiaries

- (1) They shall ensure the subsidiary's compliance with relevant laws, rules, regulations, and requirements, effective management, and adherence to SCG's corporate governance principles, code of conduct, and anti-corruption policy, as well as other policies of SCG and policies that correspond with those of SCG.
- (2) They shall provide guidance for the establishment of the subsidiary's strategic directions, policies, and business plans to ensure their alignment with SCG's directions as well as promote the adoption of additional innovation and technology to enhance the subsidiary's competitiveness.
- (3) They shall report the subsidiary's operating results and performance to SCG in an accurate, complete, and timely manner, especially material transactions that may affect the subsidiary's financial standing and operating results and any transactions other than its ordinary business transactions with significant impact on the subsidiary.
- (4) They shall oversee the subsidiary's business operations to ensure efficiency and appropriately manage SCG's return on investment in the subsidiary

SCG Risk Management Policy

Objective

SCG prioritizes enterprise risk management and has thus implemented risk management that both meets international standards and is integrated into the Company's business operation in order to be able to appropriately and promptly identify business risks and opportunities, keep risk levels within its risk appetite, seek opportunities to create added value to the organization, meet stakeholders' expectations, and support sustainable business conduct guided by good corporate governance.

Scope of application

SCG Risk Management Policy applies to Siam Cement Public Company Limited (henceforth "the Company") and its subsidiaries listed in its consolidated financial statements.

For subsidiaries that are listed companies or operate under different rules of another country, the policy may be

adapted and applied as deemed appropriate.

Risk management policy

- 1. The Board of Directors is responsible for supervising corporate risk management. The Audit Committee is assigned to monitor and review risk management processes to ensure effectiveness and efficiency as well as identify material corporate risks. The committee is also tasked with ensuring appropriate assessment and management. The Management is assigned to manage SCG's risks and report outcomes to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors respectively on a regular basis.
- 2. The Management is assigned to define risk management policy, frameworks, and processes in compliance with international standards for organization-wide implementation and integration into business decision making; ensure efficient and effective risk management at every level, from policy formulation, execution, and decision making for investments; and promote and develop state-of-the-art IT systems for use in the Company's risk management processes.
- 3. Directors are assigned to oversee risk management and that all executives and employees of SCG are risk owners and responsible for identifying, analyzing, and assessing opportunities and impacts of risks and opportunities; formulating balanced business and risk management strategies; managing business continuity under efficient and effective resource allocation; as well as regularly monitoring, reviewing, and reporting the efficiency of risk management and warning signs. All executives and employees shall also comply with the risk management policy, frameworks, and processes formulated by SCG.
- 4. Risk management is to be cultivated as part of the organizational culture, and employees' risk management knowledge and capabilities are to be continuously developed.
- 5. The risk management policy is to be regularly revised, taking into account material changes that affect the Company.

Connected Transaction and Related Party Transaction

The Board of Directors emphasizes the need for careful review and consideration before granting approval for related-party transactions, connected transactions, or transactions that may cause conflict of interest. SCG Code of Conduct has set forth a policy regarding such transactions as follows:

1. Transactions between the Company and Its Subsidiaries

SCG comprises a large number of companies whose businesses are bound to conduct transactions with one another in such ways as providing services, trading raw materials and products, or providing financial support, technical assistance, human resources, etc. In doing business or performing duties that constitute related-party transactions between SCG's companies, all employees and parties concerned are required to comply with the law, the rules and regulations of government agencies, the rules and scope of authority set forth by SCG, as well as to any criteria or conditions prescribed by local communities.

2. Transactions with Outside Entities or Other Companies

All transactions with external entities must be conducted in strict compliance with the criteria and procedure prescribed by the law, regulations issued by governmental agencies, and relevant policies of SCG, and must be approved in accordance the scope of authority prescribed by SCG. In addition, such transactions must be conducted in compliance with the terms and conditions as agreed upon in a straightforward, transparent, and accountable manner. Any transactions that may cause damage to SCG

or an external party must be avoided.

The Company has formulated Stakeholder Engagement Policy and guidelines for treatment of stakeholders, under which the Company must comply with frameworks for honest trade competition, determine appropriate and fair purchase prices, consider the appropriateness of the prices, quality, and services obtained, as well as be able to provide reasonable explanations upon being audited.

In addition, the Company has formulated guidelines and procedures for approving related-party transactions, connected transactions, and transactions that may cause conflicts of interest. Executives shall disclose to the Company in advance whether they hold any stakes involving potential conflict of interest, and the Company, in turn, shall review relevant transactions. If the transactions require approval, the management shall propose the matter to the Board of Directors or at the Shareholders' Meetings, and shall disclose the information to investors in a transparent manner. The directors or management with conflict of interest shall not be allowed to participate in the process of considering the approval.

3. Policy and Trends Regarding Future Related-Party Transactions

Future related-party transactions of the Company will be regular trade transactions. In accordance with the Company's policy, the price mechanism of the market will be used in trading and negotiation, and there will be no transfer of interest between the Companies and its subsidiaries or related parties.

4. Connected Transactions

The Company strictly follows a policy to comply with the Notification of Capital Market Supervisory Board Re: Rules on Connected Transactions and the Notification of the Board of Governors of the Stock Exchange of Thailand Re: Disclosure of Information and Other Acts of Listed Companies Concerning connected transactions, as well as laws, regulations, notifications or orders relating to the execution of related party transactions.

Anti-corruption Policy

SCG conducts its business with integrity and is committed to responsibility towards society and all stakeholders in accordance with corporate governance principles, SCG Code of Conduct, as well as its stakeholder engagement policy and guidelines. In 2012, SCG became a member of Thailand's Private Sector Collective Action Coalition Against Corruption (CAC) to demonstrate its intent and determination to combat all forms of corruption.

In order to provide clear guidelines for business operations and develop the Company into an organization of sustainability, SCG has reviewed the previously issued Anti-corruption Policy and implemented this revised Anti-corruption Policy to ensure that SCG has in place a policy that defines responsibilities, guidelines, and appropriate operational requirements to prevent corruption in all of SCG's business activities and that all decisions on business operations potentially incurring risk of corruption are considered and executed with due circumspection.

Anti-corruption Policy

SCG personnel are prohibited from engaging in or accepting any form of corruption, both directly or indirectly. This shall apply to all businesses in every country and all agencies involved. Compliance with this policy shall be regularly reviewed. Relevant operational guidelines and requirements shall also be revised to ensure alignment with changes in business, rules, regulations, and legal requirements.

Duties and Responsibilities

1. The Board of Directors is responsible for establishing an anti-corruption policy and putting in place effective anti-corruption systems in order to ensure that SCG personnel recognize the significance of anti-corruption

- efforts and cultivate an anti-corruption mindset as part of SCG's organizational culture.
- 2. The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the presence of appropriate and sufficient Anti-corruption Policy for business operations and reviewing financial and accounting reporting systems, internal control systems, internal audit systems, and risk management systems to ensure their compliance with international standards as well as their prudence, suitability, currency, and effectiveness. The Audit Committee is also in charge of handling submission of information regarding corruption involving SCG personnel, conducting fact-finding investigations, presenting the matter to the Board of Directors to determine disciplinary action or solutions, as well as giving consultation and ensuring compliance with this Anti-corruption Policy.
- 3. SCG's President, Management Teams, and executives are responsible for implementing the Anti-corruption Policy by putting in place relevant systems and promoting the policy as well as communicating it to all employees and related parties. They are also in charge of reviewing the suitability of relevant systems and guidelines to ensure alignment with changes in business, rules, regulations, and legal requirements.
- 4. The Internal Audit Director is responsible for reviewing risk assessment and offer recommendations on the formulation of corruption risk prevention procedures and approaches to present to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors. The Internal Audit Director is also responsible for auditing and reviewing operations to ensure their compliance with policies, guidelines, authority, procedures, laws, and requirements of regulatory agencies and make certain that SCG's control systems are suitable, prudent, and sufficient for combating corruption and handling potential corruption risks. Outcomes of such audits and reviews shall be reported to the Audit Committee.

Anti-corruption Guidelines

- 1. SCG personnel shall follow the Anti-corruption Policy and SCG Code of Conduct and avoid any direct or indirect involvement with corruption.
- 2. SCG personnel shall not neglect to take action upon detecting an act involving SCG that can be construed as corruption. It is their duty to notify their supervisors or responsible persons of such incident and give full cooperation in the fact-finding investigation. Should there be any inquiries or questions, they may consult their supervisors or persons designated to oversee compliance with SCG Code of Conduct through various channels provided.
- 3. SCG shall ensure fairness and provide protection to SCG personnel who refuse to engage in corruption or report corruption cases related to SCG through a protection procedure which is intended for those who follow the Anti-corruption Policy, file complaints, or cooperate in reporting corruption as defined in the Whistleblowing Policy.
- 4. SCG recognizes the importance of educating and fostering an understanding among third parties whose duties involve or may impact SCG on matters where compliance with the Anti-corruption Policy is required.
- 5. SCG strives to foster and maintain an organizational culture with zero tolerance against corruption in transactions with both public and private sectors.
- 6. SCG's Risk Management Committee is responsible for preemptively assessing potential corruption risks. The

Internal Audit Office has put in place appropriate and efficient audit processes and internal control systems for processes, finance, accounting, record keeping, and others, which are subject to regular review.

- 7. SCG shall comply with laws related to anti-corruption in Thailand and every country where it conducts business.
- 8. SCG shall consider taking appropriate action to ensure that its agents, contract counterparties, or any person acting on behalf of SCG are informed of the principles set forth in this Policy.

Rules of Practice

- This Anti-corruption Policy shall also apply to human resource processes, including nomination or selection, promotion, training, evaluation, and remuneration. Supervisors at all levels shall communicate the policy to staff so that they can apply it to business activities within their scope of responsibility and supervise its implementation to ensure efficiency.
- 2. Any implementation of the Anti-corruption Policy shall be in compliance with guidelines set forth in SCG Code of Conduct, SCG Corporate Governance Principles, stakeholder engagement policy and guidelines, as well as relevant rules and operational handbooks, and additional guidelines to be formulated in the future.
- 3. To ensure clarity regarding activities involving high risks of corruption, SCG personnel shall exercise caution and comply with SCG Code of Conduct and guidelines as follows:
 - 3.1 Gifts and Hospitality

Any offering or accepting of gifts and hospitality shall comply with SCG Code of Conduct.

3.2 Donations or sponsorships

Any offering or accepting money or assets for donations or sponsorships shall be transparent and legal. It must be made certain that such donations or sponsorship shall not be used as a pretext for bribery.

3.3 Facilitation Payment

All facilitation payment to government employees is prohibited.

- 3.4 Political Contributions
 - (1) SCG shall maintain political neutrality and shall not act in the interest of or provide financial or other support to political parties, political coalitions, political figures, or political candidates, either directly or indirectly, either at the local, regional, or national level.
 - (2) SCG personnel shall strictly comply with SCG Code of Conduct in relation to political action.
- 3.5 Hiring of government employees (Revolving Door)

The hiring of government employees who may create a conflict of interest is prohibited or noncompliance with laws and regulations.

3.6 Business relations and procurement with public and private sectors.

Any offering or accepting of bribery is prohibited in all business activities. Any dealing with public and private sectors shall be transparent, honest, and in compliance with relevant laws.

Communication and Training

1. SCG shall communicate and disseminate the Anti-corruption Policy to SCG personnel through various channels,

such as orientation for new directors and employees, training sessions or seminars, as well as internal public relations within SCG's workplaces and electronic systems. SCG shall also periodically communicate to SCG personnel various forms of corruption, risks of being involved in corruption, and how to submit information. This is to ensure that SCG personnel acknowledge and implement the policy.

- 2. SCG shall communicate and disseminate the Anti-corruption Policy as well as SCG's whistleblowing channels to the public, subsidiaries, associates, and stakeholders via various channels, such as websites, annual reports, and annual registration forms, to foster an understanding and support anti-corruption efforts.
- 3. SCG personnel who have any inquiries about this policy may consult their supervisors, secretary to the Audit Committee, or the Internal Audit Director.

Disciplinary Action

SCG personnel who fail to comply with this policy are subject to disciplinary action and may also be subject to legal punishments if they commit an offense under the law.

Whistleblowing Measures and Channels

SCG has established mechanisms for whistleblowing, complaint handling, and the processing of cases related to violation of laws, rules, and SCG Code of Conduct or to behavior of SCG personnel that may be suspicious of corruption. SCG has also prescribed appropriate whistleblower protection measures according to the Whistleblowing Policy to provide a clear guideline and enhance the efficiency of complaint handling.

Disclosure Policy

SCG's information disclosure has been consistently guided by fairness, transparency, and accountability, in accordance with the principle of corporate governance. As the Board of Directors deemed it appropriate, relevant guidelines were compiled, and SCG's disclosure policy was formulated in written form for the first time on October 21, 2008 to assure its shareholders, investors, stakeholders, and the general public that SCG's disclosure of information is clear, accurate, compliant with the law, and equitable.

As there have been amendments to laws relevant to disclosure, the Board of Directors has approved the revision of SCG's disclosure policy to keep it aligned with these developments.

Policy

- 1. SCG is committed to complying with laws relevant to disclosure in every country SCG operates or plans to conduct business.
- 2. SCG must disclose material non-public information accurately, completely, and with utmost caution so as not to distort its essence, in accordance with relevant laws, criteria, standards, and practices of agencies concerned. The disclosure must also be timely and fair to make certain that shareholders and investors receive sufficient information for decision making equitably and can easily access the information. To this end, the information may be disclosed through SCG's official channels or other channels defined by related agencies as deemed appropriate. Caution must be exercised with regard to the time of disclosure.

In addition, SCG must clearly define persons authorized to disclose material non-public information and their scope of authority, so that material information of the Company is disclosed through one channel to ensure consistency and prevent potential confusion. SCG employees are prohibited from disclosing material non-public information under all circumstances unless assigned by the President and CEO, Executive Vice President, or Vice Presidents, or Presidents of the Business Groups of SCG.

- 3. Disclosure of material public information must be clear and complete to prevent potential confusion. Furthermore, any related additional information that will be provided must be clear and consistent with the disclosed information to prevent any misunderstanding about the latter.
- 4. Disclosure of forward-looking information must be conducted with utmost care to prevent any misunderstanding of the essence of the information, and the conditions or assumptions that inform the prediction must be set forth clearly. The source and accuracy of the information must be verified before it can be used in analyses and forecasts.
- 5. Non-material information must be disclosed on the basis of truthfulness and without an intent to mislead others with regard to facts about financial statements, operating results, and security prices. In addition, it must not be disclosed in such a manner that leads others to conceive that security prices are increasing or decreasing.
- 6. Disclosure of material information or other related information requires utmost caution. SCG must not disclose such information before the date of disclosure to the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the general public.
- 7. SCG must put in place information disclosure systems to ensure transparency, clarity, accuracy, timeliness, and sufficiency of information for investment-related decisions.
- 8. To ensure compliance with this policy, SCG Code of Ethics, SCG Code of Conduct, and the Company's antitrust guidelines shall also be applied.
- 9. Non-compliance with this policy is considered a violation of SCG Code of Conduct.

Investor Relations Code of Conduct

The Siam Cement Public Company Limited has compiled this Investor Relations Code of Conduct to establish guidelines for correct and proper practices to which investor relations officers (IROs) can adhere. The Code of Conduct details fundamental principles regarding information disclosure, inside information protection, fair and equitable treatment of stakeholders, and integrity, all of which are consistent with SCG Corporate Governance and form a basis on which added value can be created and the Company can inspire confidence in its shareholders, investors, the general public, and every stakeholder.

The Investor Relations Code of Conduct comprises four main principles as follows:

- 1. Disclosing information material to investment decisions accurately sufficiently and timely
- 2. Handling and protecting inside information
- 3. Disclosing information fairly and equitably
- 4. Performing duties with integrity

1. Disclosing information material to investment decisions accurately, sufficiently and timely

1.1 Disclose information material to investment decisions accurately, sufficiently, and in a timely fashion in accordance with the rules and regulations of the authorities concerned such as the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET).

- 1.2 Exercise their discretion and caution in disclosing information and refuse to divulge trade secrets or information that may compromise the Company's competitiveness.
- 1.3 Disclose information in a regular and clear manner and exercise caution to prevent misunderstanding or misinterpretation. In addition, they mustprovide both positive and negative facts, ensure sufficient detailsfor a clear understanding, and recognize that a disclosure of complete information will enable information receivers to better approximate and predicttheCompany's current and future performance.
- 1.4 Clarify facts to the general public in a timely manner in accordance with the rules and regulations of the SET and relevant authorities upon the surfacing ofrumors, news leaks, inaccurate understanding among stakeholders, or any information about the company that may significantly influence investment decisions or the price or value of the Company's securities.
- 1.5 Do not disclose inaccurate information or information that is conjectural or predictive in nature, either verbally or in written forms, prior to public disclosure with the intention to manipulate the purchasing of the Company's shares.
- 1.6 Do not provide negative or slanderous information about the Company's competitors or stakeholders.
- 1.7 Establish information dissemination channels or sources to ensure equitable disclosure of information.

2. Handling and protecting inside information

- 2.1 Do not use inside information which is material and not yet to be publicly disclosed for IROs' own interest or the interest of others and must not disclose such information until it has been publicly disclosed in accordance with relevant rules and regulations.
- 2.2 Comply with laws, rules, regulations, and the Company's policies related to handling of inside information. Material information that may affect performance should be disclosed through channels provided by the SET before it is relayed to any specific investor group.
- 2.3 Adopt a "Quiet Period" of at least two weeks prior to the disclosure of the Company's financial statements, during which IROs will not host a meeting or provide analysts and investors with information or answer questions related to the Company's short-term performance.

3. Disclosing information fairly and equitably

- 3.1 Host activities for different stakeholder groups as deemed appropriate to offer opportunity to each group for equal and fair access to information and ensure that no group is placed in a disadvantageous position or has their investment opportunities compromised.
- 3.2 Provide channel with equal opportunity for all stakeholders to contact and make enquiries and must not extend special privileges to any particular group of stakeholders.
- 3.3 Disclose promptly the information presented in exclusive meetings such as roadshow and analyst presentations on the Company's websites and channels provided by the SET after such meetings so that it becomes publicly available.
- 3.4 Treat each stakeholder group as the followingguidelines:

(1) Investors

- Treat all investors, retail or institutional, equally.
- Provide opportunity to retail investors for the same level of access to data as analysts and institutional investors.
- Do not discriminate in accepting one-on-one meetings with institutional investors or investor groups.

(2) Analysts

- Offer analysts from every securities company equal opportunities to attend analyst meetings arranged by the Company.
- Do not give any gift or reward to analysts with the intention to influence them to write

- analysis for the Company or write reports on the Company solely in a positive light.
- Respect the report and opinion of analysts. Should such a report of opinion includes or provides inaccurate information, IROs may offer clarifications.

(3) Media

- Give opportunity to the media for equal access to accurate, clear, and pertinent information.
- Do not disclose information that is about to be publicly disclosed in the media to any specific media outlet in advance.
- Do not give any gift or reward to analysts with the intention to influence them to write groundless news or articles for the Company.

(4) Regulators

- Cooperate in providing vital and appropriate information when requested by regulators.
- Do not give any gift or reward to regulators with the expectation of special treatment in return.

(5) <u>Internal parties</u>

- Host activities occasionally so that the executives of the Company can meet different stakeholder groups as deemed appropriate.
- Report to the Board of Directors and the executives all useful information that helps add value to the Company such as results of investor relations activities, opinions of analysts and investors, and capital market sentiment.
- Communicate the Company's Investor Relations Code of Conduct to employees with responsibilities relating to investor relations so as to establish a uniform practice consistent with that of IROs.

(6) Other stakeholders

- Disclose information to other stakeholders accurately, sufficiently, timely, and equitably. Should a disclosure be necessitated for certain business operations, utmost caution must be exercised to safeguard confidentiality.

4. Performing duties with integrity

- 4.1 Do not receive gifts or reward that may be construed as personal incentives or gain.
- 4.2 Avoid actions that constitute conflicts of interest with the Company such as the use of the Company's assets or information for personal gain.
- 4.3 Do not exploit their relationship or information obtained as IROs to seek personal gain.
- 4.4 Comply with SCG policies and Code of Conduct and report to supervisors should noncompliance of the Investor Relations Code of Conduct arise.

Human Right Policy

SCG aims to conduct business with ethics holding on to responsibility to society and all groups of stakeholders based on Good Corporate Governance principle and SCG Code of Conduct. For human rights protection, SCG has strictly complied with laws and is committed to human rights respect in accordance with internationally accepted standards especially giving support to and complying with Universal Declaration of Human Rights: UDHR, United Nations Global Compact: UNGC, United Nations Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights: UNGP and the International Labor Organization Declaration on Fundamental Principles and Rights at Work: ILO. Moreover, SCG also commit to manage Human Rights according to Code of Conduct and other company-specific statement of commitment.

To ensure that SCG's business is free from human rights violation, the Board of Directors of The Siam Cement Public Company Limited considers, therefore, it is appropriate to define the Human Rights Policy and Guidelines to prevent violation of human rights in every activity of SCG's business (direct activity) including suppliers/ contractors in business value chain and joint ventures.

Scope of Application

This Human Rights Policy and requirements is applicable to all activities of SCG) employees, direct business activities, products and services(where SCG has management control such as own operations, companies 100% owned by SCG, subsidiaries and joint ventures.

SCG expects business partners, such as associate companies or other investments where SCG does not have overall control, as well as contractors, suppliers and others to uphold and comply with this Policy.

Definition Terms in the Human Rights Policy

"Human Rights" are rights inherent to all human beings, regardless of physical or mental status, race, nationality, national or social origin, ethnicity, religion, gender, language, age, skin color, education, social status, culture, tradition or any other status as stipulated by laws of each country and treaty each country has commitment to. Human rights include the rights to life and liberty, freedom from slavery and torture, human trafficking, harassment, forced labor and child labor, freedom of expression, freedom of association and right to collective bargaining, the right to work and working hours, the right to education, equal remuneration and other rights such as personal data protection, occupational health and safety, minorities in local community and community rights. Everyone is entitled to these rights, without discrimination in accordance with diversity and inclusion.

"Discrimination" is defined as the act and the result of treating people unequally by imposing unequal burdens or denying benefits, instead of treating each person fairly on the basis of individual merit. Discrimination can also include harassment.

"Harassment" is defined as a course of comments or actions that are unwelcome, or should reasonably be known to be unwelcome, to the person towards whom they are addressed. Non-sexual harassment includes but is not exclusive to mobbing and bullying, while sexual harassment includes a sexual component.

"Vulnerable Group" means a "population within a country that has specific characteristics that make it at a higher risk of needing humanitarian assistance than others or being excluded from financial and social services such as women, disability person, children, indigenous people, migrant workers and people, LGBTQI+, third-party contracted labor, contractors and community.

"SCG" means the Siam Cement Public Company Limited and subsidiaries of the Siam Cement Public Company Limited based on consolidated financial statements.

Human Rights Policy

The Board of Directors, executives, management and employees at all level shall be aware of importance of, respect human rights of every aspect of everyone including social and community, laws of each country and treaty each country is committed to and:

- treat everyone following human rights principle on equal basis without discrimination,
- avoid any act considered violation of human rights,
- support human rights protection,
- support communication, dissemination, education, creation of understanding, defining direction, monitor and provide any support to any related parties.

Guidelines

- 1. Everyone shall pay respect to human rights and treat each other with respect and honor on equality basis to all stakeholders and vulnerable groups without considering differences in physical or mental status, race, nationality, national or social origin, ethnicity, religion, gender, language, age, skin color, education, social status, culture, tradition or any other status.
- 2. Care must be taken when performing duty to prevent any risks in human rights violation in business and committed to preventing all forms of harassment both sexual and other forms of harassment. SCG is committed to non-discrimination, anti-harassment and zero-tolerance policies against all forms of harassment)including sexual and non-sexual harassment(and discrimination dictate that any allegations are taken seriously and handled confidentially and sympathetically. If allegations are confirmed, remedial action, disciplinary action, dismissal, or legal action will be taken.
- 3. Everyone shall support communication, dissemination, education, creation of understanding, defining direction, and provide any support to employees, suppliers/ contractors in the business value chain and those in the joint ventures to join the business with ethics respecting human rights and treating everyone based on the human rights principle in this policy and regularly check for understanding. Training for all employees and relevant parties on human rights including discrimination and harassment in the workplace shall be provided.
- 4. Everyone shall monitor and provide any support to protect human rights. They shall monitor human rights respect, not ignore or pay attention when finding any action matching human rights violation relating to SCG-Report must be made to supervisor or people of responsibility on this issue. Such person shall give cooperation to any inquiry or investigation of truth. In case of any doubt or question, such person shall consult his supervisor or people of responsibility via the assigned channels.
- 5. Provide up-to-date and effective grievance mechanism and escalation process for reporting incidents, fairly treat and protect any whistleblower who reports a violation of the human rights of an individual related to SCG by implementing whistleblower protection measures to protect all whistleblowers and informants involved as stipulated in SCG Whistleblower Protection Policy.
- 6. Continuously develop and conduct a Due Diligence Process covering new investment or mergers and partnership in order to identify human rights risks and impacts and potentially affected all group of stakeholders, plan for corrective and preventive actions on addressing, preventing, and managing human rights violations in accordance with a unified organization-wide risk management framework which cover related industry and country specific issues, and to track and monitor the situation. Also, appropriate mitigation and remediation plan shall be set for human rights violation case.

- 7. SCG is determined to create and maintain corporate culture aiming to respect human rights according to this Human Rights Policy.
- 8. Any person who violates the human rights and in cases of discriminatory behavior or harassment of which is also acting against SCG Code of Conduct shall be undertaken corrective action or be considered disciplinary penalty as defined by SCG and may be subject to legal punishment if the act is against the law.
- 9. SCG is committed to communicate, report and disclose human rights implementations, mitigation and remediation including incidents of discrimination and harassment to the public in a complete and transparent manner.
- 10. Regularly review human rights policy taking into account the changes that are significant to the organization.

SCG Privacy Policy

SCG respects the privacy of customers, shareholders, SCG's employees, and persons relevant to SCG. To ensure that the rights of said persons shall be protected under the Personal Data Protection Act (PDPA), the Board of Directors of The Siam Cement Public Company Limited has thus resolved to issue the SCG Privacy Policy so that SCG can have clear and proper guidelines, mechanisms, governance measures, and management for personal data.

1. Scope of Application

This Privacy Policy is applied to SCG, SCG 's employees, and any person relating to personal data processing as instructed by or on behalf of SCG.

2. Definitions

- 2.1 Processing means any operation performed on personal data such as collecting, recording, organizing, structuring, storing, editing, retrieving, disclosing, forwarding, disseminating, transferring, combining, erasing, and destroying.
- 2.2 Personal Data means information that relates to an individual and thus makes it possible to identify the individual, either directly or indirectly, such as name, surname, e-mail, phone number, IP Address, image, nationality, religion, political opinions, Genetic data, and Biometric data.
- 2.3 Data Subject means any natural person who can be directly or indirectly identified by personal data.
- 2.4 Data Controller means a natural person or a juristic person that is authorized to make decisions concerning personal data processing.
- 2.5 Data Processor means a natural person or a juristic person which carries out operations concerning personal data processing as instructed by or on behalf of the Data Controller.

- 2.6 SCG means The Siam Cement Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries according to the consolidated financial statements of The Siam Cement Public Company Limited.
- 3. Privacy Policy: Personal Data Protection Governance
 - 3.1 SCG shall issue the structure of personal data governance so as to define proper methods and measures, in compliance with laws, as follows:
 - (1) Setting up Organizational Structure and clearly defining roles, missions and responsibilities of relevant departments and persons, so as to establish governance mechanisms, control, responsibility, operation, implementation, and monitoring of personal data protection measures in compliance with laws and SCG Privacy Policy;
 - (2) Appointing SCG Data Protection Officer (SCG DPO) with roles and duties as specified in SCG Privacy Policy.
 - 3.2 SCG shall issue policies, standards, guidelines, procedures, and other documents relating to personal data protection in alignment with the law and SCG Privacy Policy.
 - 3.3 SCG shall issue Policy Management Process to oversee that SCG Privacy Policy is being constantly adhered to.
 - 3.4 SCG shall regularly carry out training for SCG's employees so that the employees will recognize the importance of the Privacy Policy, and to ensure that all of SCG's relevant employees are well-trained, understand personal data protection, and adhere to SCG Privacy Policy.

4. Privacy Policy: Personal Data Processing

- 4.1 SCG, as a data controller and data processor, shall conduct personal data processing in a fair and transparent manner in compliance with laws while taking into account the accuracy of such personal data. The determination of scopes and objectives of personal data processing as well as the period of time personal data shall be stored, shall be carry out as necessary under lawful objectives and SCG's business practices. In addition, SCG Packaging shall sufficiently maintain confidentiality, integrity, and security of personal data.
- 4.2 SCG shall issue a process and oversee to manage personal data at every step to comply with laws and SCG Privacy Policy.
- 4.3 SCG shall issue and retain Records of Processing (RoP) for recording transaction and any activity relating to personal data processing in compliance with laws. In addition, Records of Processing shall be revised should there be any change of transactions or relevant activities.
- 4.4 SCG shall issue clear process to ensure that notice of objectives, and accumulation and details of personal data processing (Privacy Notices), as well as seeking consent from the data subjects are in compliance with laws. Governance measures for and validation of the said issues shall also be implemented.
- 4.5 SCG shall establish mechanisms for personal data validation and personal data correction.

- 4.6 In the case where SCG send, transfer, or allow any other person to use personal data, SCG Packaging shall have an agreement with data receivers or users to define rights and duties in compliance with laws and SCG Privacy Policy.
- 4.7 In the case SCG send or transfer personal data abroad, SCG shall proceed in accordance with laws.
- 4.8 SCG shall destroy personal data when it is due in compliance with laws and SCG's business practices.
- 4.9 SCG shall assess risks and set measures to prevent risks and reduce effects which may occur with personal data processing.

5. Privacy Policy: Data Subject Rights

SCG shall provide measures, channels, and means so that the data subject are able to exercise their rights as stipulated by laws, and shall record and assess the response to data subjects' rights of access.

6. Privacy Policy: Personal Data Security

- 6.1 SCG shall sufficiently set forth personal data security measures, and prevent the personal data leaks and the use of personal data without permission.
- 6.2 SCG shall issue the Privacy Incident Management Policy and Incident Response Program so as to promptly identify and handle privacy incidents.
- 6.3 SCG shall provide notification process for data subjects, government officers, data controllers (in case SCG is the data processor or joint data controller), and other persons in compliance with laws.

7. Privacy Policy: Personal Data Protection Compliance

- 7.1 SCG shall provide monitoring process in case there is any amendment of laws, and regularly keep personal data protection compliance up-to-date and compliant with laws
- 7.2 SCG shall regularly review and revise the policy, standards, guidelines, procedures, and other documents relevant to personal data protection in order to keep them up-to-date, and compliant to the law and situation in each period.

8. Roles, Duties and Responsibilities

- 8.1 Board of Directors have roles duties, and responsibilities as follows:
 - (1) Oversee that the structure for personal data governance and internal control concerning SCG are set forth to ensure compliance with laws and SCG Privacy Policy.
 - (2) Oversee and support SCG Packaging to carry out personal data protection with efficiency and compliance to laws.

8.2 Privacy Committee

Risk Management Committee shall be appointed to act as the Privacy Committee, which have roles, duties, and responsibilities as follows:

(1) Set up the structure for personal data governance, relevant internal control, Privacy Incident Management Policy, and Incident Response Program so as to promptly identify and handle

- privacy incidents.
- (2) Assess the efficiency of compliance with SCG Privacy Policy and report the assessment results to the Board of Directors on a regular basis at least once a year, as well as supervise to ensure that any risk relating to personal data is properly handled and that proper risk management practices are implemented.
- (3) Define and review the standards and guidelines so that SCG's operation complies with laws and SCG Privacy Policy.
- (4) Appoint SCG Data Protection Office)SCG DPO(
- 8.3 The executives have roles, duties, and responsibilities to supervise departments in_charge of overseeing compliance with SCG Privacy Policy and promoting awareness among SCG 's employees.
- 8.4 SCG's DPO has roles, duties, and responsibilities as stipulated by laws, include:
 - (1) Regularly report data protection status to the Privacy Committee and provide feedbacks so as to keep SCG's personal data protection up-to-date and compliant with the law
 - (2) Giving advice to SCG's employees regarding compliance with laws and SCG Privacy Policy.
 - (3) Supervise the operations of divisions in SCG to comply with laws and SCG Privacy Policy.
- 8.5 SCG employees have roles, duties, and responsibilities as follows:
 - (1) Comply with SCG Privacy Policy, standards, guidelines, procedures, and other documents relevant to personal data protection.
 - (2) privacy incidents, and non-compliance with laws and SCGP Privacy Policy to superior.

9. Punishment for Non-Compliance with SCG Privacy Policy

Non-compliance with SCGP Privacy Policy might be guilty of misconduct and lead to disciplinary actions, including punishments as specified by laws.

Intellectual Property Policy

Definitions

- Intellectual property refers to patents, petty patents, copyrights, trademarks, trade secrets, knowledge, circuit diagrams, geographical indications, or any rights in connection with the aforementioned items.
- SCG refers to
 - 1. The Siam Cement Public Company Limited
 - 2. Subsidiaries of the Siam Cement Public Company Limited, which includes Subsidiaries defined pursuant to consolidated financial statements of The Siam Cement Public Company Limited.
- Company refers to any company within SCG.

- Employee refers to any Permanent employees under the employment agreement, probationary employees, and employees under special employment agreements and companies in SCG in every country where SCG operates.
- Business Associate refers to any person or group or legal entity with whom SCG has to deal in the normal
 course of business, including the government, state agencies, state enterprises, private-sector organizations,
 etc.

Objectives

- 1. To inform SCG employees and organizational units of the practice guideline concerning the intellectual property for further implementation.
- 2. To inform business associates of the practice guidelines concerning intellectual property and SCG expects business associates to implement the said guideline in their business practices.

Scope

This policy applies to all employees and all organizational units within SCG.

Principles

SCG Intellectual Property Policy is based on the following guiding principles:

- SCG respects the law and adheres to the principles of good governance in the management of the intellectual property
- 2. SCG fosters innovation and technology development for continuous and sustainable utilization.
- 3. SCG employs a system of rewards, appreciation, and encouragement to boost employees' engagement with processes for the creation of intellectual property.

1. Organization Structure

SCG establishes a department dedicated to overseeing the management of the intellectual property and related laws to promote the intellectual property management

2. Awareness Promotion of Intellectual Property

- 2.1 SCG promotes and supports the education of intellectual property among employees.
- 2.2 Employees must obtain education of intellectual property to gain knowledge, understanding for effective implementation.

3. Intellectual Property and Innovation

- 3.1 Employees must respect the ownership rights of other creators
- 3.2 SCG attaches great importance to the use of the intellectual property as key tool for innovation creation
- 3.3 SCG owns intellectual property rights regardless of whether or not it seeks the legal protection for the creation which employees have invented as follows:
-)1(The creation developed under the employment contract or an employment contract with the purpose of facilitating the creation unless the employment contract is specified otherwise.
-)2(Creation using methods, statistics, or reports employees can use or access as an employee under the

- employment contract, even if the employment contract is not related to the creation.
- 3.4 SCG rewards employees to promote innovation creation and establish fairness in line with applicable laws or regulations.

4. Protection of Intellectual Property

- 4.1 SCG provides appropriate protection of intellectual property.

 Employees are responsible for providing cooperation and assistance in preserving the rights and obtaining the protection of the rights of the Company.
- 4.2 Employees understand the protection of trade secrets and adhere to the said policy.
- 4.3 Employees with relevant duties must perform a legal demonstration of rights and protections in accordance with appropriate intellectual property provisions on their work, products, services, logos, or advertisements.

5. Use of Intellectual Property

- 5.1 SCG promotes the proper use of intellectual property, which is in line with the business situation.
- 5.2 SCG determines the valuation of intellectual property for the benefit of licensing or assigning rights to individuals or entities, both internal and external.
- 5.3 SCG establishes relevant guidelines and procedures for the licensing, transfer, purchase, or sale of intellectual property rights, including any other commercial uses for the benefit of intellectual property management in accordance with business strategy, research, and business planning.

6. Intellectual Property Monitoring and Auditing and Law Enforcement

- 6.1 SCG has organized a monitoring and auditing process of intellectual property, products, and services to ensure appropriate action for preventing damage to the business and the Company's reputation, and others.
- 6.2 SCG will take appropriate legal action if any violation or activity is found, which may lead to an infringement of intellectual property rights.
- 6.3 Employees are responsible for cooperating and supporting the monitoring and auditing process of intellectual property, products and services according to Clause 6.1.

7. Partnership Between SCG and Business Associate

Employees involved in the matters shall administer intellectual property in relation to each type of contract or agreement in an appropriate manner. Examples of an intellectual property contract or agreement that may be specified in the contract or agreement are confidentiality, proper information disclosure, intellectual property ownership, the exercise of intellectual property rights, and benefit-sharing.

3.3 Policies and Guidelines toward Stakeholders

Stakeholder Engagement Policy

SCG has always paid close attention to the engagement of stakeholders. This is evident from the corporate philosophy of engaging in business based on morality and responsibility to society as well as being a good citizen, implementing the code of conduct as a basis of work of all employees, employing the good corporate governance as a principle of management and exercising the sustainable development of SCG.

Along with the changing of the society, environment, and business conditions, groups of stakeholders are more complicated and carry higher expectations of fair treatment and demand participation in the expression of opinions, process of decision-making, and governance of affected issues. The engagement of stakeholders is thus more important than ever. SCG, therefore, provides "SCG Stakeholder Engagement Policy" in writing as a clear guideline for SCG employees in conducting business so as to offer shareholders long-term value added and more concerns to the impact over SCG stakeholders.

Definition of Stakeholders

Stakeholders are persons or groups of persons who are directly or indirectly affected by a business operation of SCG, as well as those who may have interests in a business operation of SCG, or abilities to influence over the outcomes of a business operation of SCG such as customers, employees, communities, shareholders, business partners, government agencies, intellectual leaders, etc.

Stakeholder Engagement Policy

SCG is committed to acting as a good citizen of society, especially in every community where SCG has business operations. It honours the rights of stakeholders and treats them fairly, listens to their opinions and concerns, builds understanding with stakeholders, encourages co-operation constructively in matters that interest stakeholders, and takes part in developing society and environment so that SCG continues developing its business sustainably.

<u>Guidelines for the Engagement of Stakeholders</u>

1. <u>Determining, Identifying, and Analyzing Stakeholders</u>

Clearly determine, identify and categorize stakeholders taking into consideration the connection with each business unit in order to be able to analyze the risks and impacts, direct or indirect, incurred to each group of stakeholders comprehensively and clearly by bearing in mind that each group of stakeholders has its own set of perspectives and expectations. Different strategies and priorities of implementation thus need to be formulated for each respective group.

Determine material sustainable development issues that affect decision making, operations, and operational effectiveness of SCG or stakeholders. In the formulation of business strategy formulation, identify the relationships and materiality of issues to SCG and stakeholders.

Develop stakeholder maps to identify stakeholders and relevant parties in SCG and to understand the perspective of stakeholders, potential impacts, and expectations of each stakeholder group. These stakeholder maps will be used in designing means of responding to the needs of stakeholders as well as appropriate strategies and communication methods that will sustainably influence the operation of SCG.

Good relations with stakeholders should be initiated from the very beginning, that is, from the planning stage, so that plans can be adjusted or work procedures can be revised on time.

2. Adopting Communication Strategies

Closely communicate and persistently build understanding with stakeholders in order to gain correct perception and lead to good relationship with and trust from stakeholders by adopting particular communication strategies, methods, formats, and procedures suitable to each group of stakeholders, situation, duration, and local culture. This may be determined by the degree of damage or the possible impact incurred from negligence or inaction.

3. <u>Disclosing Information</u>

Disclose information accurately, explicitly, transparently, and comprehensively in order to assure that the stakeholders received sufficient, consistent, and timely information. For example, the disclosure of useful information should be done at the appropriate time, stated the real purpose of information and assured that there is a transparent process of reporting information to stakeholders However, in disclosing information, one should consider a factor of appropriateness and follow SCG Disclosure Policy.

4. <u>Encouraging Participation</u>

Encourage stakeholders to participate in matters that affect them; provide channels for receiving suggestions, problems, and complaints from stakeholders; give priority; welcome opinion and exchange views (Stakeholder Dialogue) constructively in order to perceive ideas, expectations, and needs of stakeholders. In doing the Stakeholder Dialogue, one must recognize that differences of stakeholders may affect the opinions, e.g. age, gender, education, experience, attitudes, etc. Moreover, one should provide preliminary information prior to discussion, report outcomes of the discussion, disseminate reports to participants, and collect information systematically. SCG should also consider participating in giving opinions and identifying problems or obstacles to those having roles in regulating rules and orders which could have a widespread economic, social, and environmental impact.

5. Managing risks related to stakeholder engagement

Anticipate, identify, and prioritize risks related to stakeholder engagement in order to prepare plans to ensure a creative exchange of opinion with stakeholders. Risks that should be considered include reluctance to participate, fatigue, dissatisfaction with SCG's responses, presence of reserved stakeholders among those who prefer to share their opinion, presence stakeholders who intentionally obstruct an exchange of opinion, presence of stakeholders who have not received information, presence of stakeholders who do not have leverage, technical problems, and conflict among stakeholder groups.

6. Reviewing and reporting

Inspect and assess stakeholder engagement systematically to continuously enhance stakeholder engagement; develop action plans; foster cooperation between stakeholders and related parties in SCG, track the cooperation development process, and report to stakeholders. In addition, SCG must also disclose the overall results of its stakeholder engagement to the public, including obtained results, impact, and operation scopes, as well as demonstrate the relations between benefits from stakeholder engagement and SCG's operations.

The Duty of the Management

The duty of the management is to ensure efficient and effective stakeholder engagement operations in accordance with the policy by providing suitable resources, such as budgets and sufficient knowledgeable and skilled responsible individuals, and by putting in place systems of taking suggestions from stakeholders, compiling information, monitor progress, and conducting assessment. Information on stakeholder engagement will be integrated into the Company's corporate governance, strategies, and management at every level to create acceptance and develop sustainable business practices across the organization.

SCG has established policies and practices for 12 groups of stakeholders as guidelines for its business operations, added value creation, and sustainable development, as detailed below.

Policies and Practices Toward Stakeholders

SCG places great importance on its shareholders, who are owners of the business. Accordingly, the executives and employees as well as the Board of Directors, which itself represents shareholders, are committed to carrying out business in line with the principles of good corporate governance and SCG's own business philosophy to ensure maximum benefits and long-term economic value for shareholders. To ensure proper treatment of shareholders, the company has set forth the following guidelines, pledging:

- 1. To operate in accordance with SCG's corporate vision and corporate governance principles with honesty and prudence, and without conflict of interest, while creating good returns for every shareholder in a sustainable manner.
- 2. To respect the rights of shareholders and provide equitable and fair treatment to every one of them. Accordingly, to not perform any act that might violate or restrict the rights of shareholders.
- 3. To provide shareholders the right to propose the agenda of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and to nominate any qualified person to be a director with sufficient time in advance.
- 4. To provide shareholders with all significant details concerning the Shareholders' Meeting and the Meeting agenda items to be considered by the shareholders with sufficient time in advance.
- 5. To prevent the directors, executives, and employees in the involved departments as well as their spouses and children from making use of inside information for their ownbenefit or that of others before disclosure to the public.
- 6. To assign independent directors to take care of minor shareholders and to receive complaints or suggestions from shareholders through easily accessible channels established by the Company.
- 7. To establish efficient measures for internal control, internal audit, and risk management.
- 8. To disclose the Company's significant information, financial reports, and operating results on an accurate, complete, timely, transparent, and reliable basis through easily accessible channels to consistently keep shareholders abreast of the Company's operating performance.

Policies and Practices Toward Employees

SCG firmly believes that employees are its most valuable assets and a vital contributing factor to the Company's success. As a consequence, the Company treats employees fairly with respect to human rights in accordance with SCG's human rights policy and with concern for their needs. The goals are to foster a good relationship between the Company and employees, to promote ongoing development of employees' skills and potential, and to provide job security and career advancement. The guidelines for practice toward employees are as follows:

- 1. To recruit employees through a fair and efficient selection system and employment conditions to find "smart and ethical" employees having strong qualifications and integrity to join the Company.
- 2. To treat employees with sensitivity and fairness while paying due respect to their personal rights, protecting these rights from being violated. Likewise, to support and respect the right of employees to express their opinions independently.
- 3. To provide channels for employees to file grievances and report any act of impropriety in violation of the SCG Code of Conduct as well as to protect the complainant from retribution or penalty related to filing a complaint (Whistleblowing Policy).
- 4. To provide employees in every field of work and at all levels sufficient and continuous

- professional development appropriate for their duties and responsibilities and to instill ethical awareness into every employee.
- 5. To promote and encourage working as a team to create unity and to raise employees' awareness about work discipline.
- 6. To evaluate employees' performance and provide fair remuneration on the basis of the suitability, capability, and competence of each individual. The Company is also committed to providing fair and appropriate benefits to employees. The benefits will be constantly improved to keep them on a par with those of leading companies in the same industry.
- 7. To raise awareness and promote employees' occupational health and safety while maintaining a congenial work environment that enables employees to feel like being part of a family.
- 8. To operate in compliance with internationally accepted occupational health and safety standards as well as environmental management standards.
- 9. To encourage employees to find a balance between family life and work.
- 10. To provide channels where important information can be disclosed to employees to keep them informed of the operations and operating results of all SCG business units.

Policies and Practices Toward Customers

SCG pledges to ensure that customers for SCG products and services receive maximum benefits and complete satisfaction in terms of quality and fair price. Likewise the company pledges to develop and maintain a sustainable relationship with customers. The practice guidelines are as follows:

- 1. To deliver products and services that address the needs of consumers and the general public and to play a part in contributing to better quality of life and the sustainable development of society.
- 2. To constantly drive innovation and research & development to generate high quality, high value-added products and services that meet the needs of customers in multiple ways.
- 3. To develop environmentally-friendly products and services with a focus on resource- efficiency, energy-efficiency, recyclability, and long life of service.
- 4. To produce safe, reliable products and services as well as to give accurate and adequate information about them to customers.
- 5. To store customers' information safely and systematically and refrain from abusing the information.
- 6. To set the prices of products and services at reasonable rates.
- 7. To implement a quality management system that matches international standards.
- 8. To set up a customer support office to provide product information, advice, and solutions to problems, while also handling complaints, to ensure customers' highest satisfaction.

Policies and Practices Toward Suppliers

SCG always obeys fair competition standards and strictly complies with all contractual obligations, the SCG Code of Conduct, and all promises to suppliers. The guidelines are as follows:

- 1. To determine and establish fair and reasonable prices by taking into account the reasonableness of the offered prices, quality, and service levels and to be able to provide appropriate reasons during any audit.
- 2. To pay suppliers accurately and on time.
- 3. To establish clear procurement regulations.
- 4. To operate business sustainably and transparently by complying with all the terms and conditions

- agreed upon in a transaction and treating all involved parties equitably and fairly.
- 5. To refrain from demanding or accepting any improper benefits from its suppliers.
- 6. To pay regular visits to suppliers to exchange ideas and listen to their suggestions or advice on improvement.
- 7. To support procurement of eco-friendly and community products.
- 8. To refrain from purchasing products from suppliers that violate human rights or intellectual property law.
- 9. To refrain from disclosing information of suppliers to others without their prior consent.
- 10. To refrain from dealing in any business with any supplier that carries out illegal acts or acts against public order and good morals.
- 11. To provide support and encourage suppliers to adopt the principle of sustainable development through social and environmental responsibility in their business operations, in accordance with SCG Supplier Code of Conduct.

Policies and Practices Toward Business Contractors

SCG assists its contractors with respect to human right standards, environment, work safety, and remuneration. Furthermore, the Company is resolved to develop the capabilities and knowledge of contractors both related to work and beyond to enable them to work more efficiently. The guidelines are as follows:

- 1. To determine appropriate and fair remuneration and ensure that the amount of remuneration paid by the contractors to their workers shall not be less than the wage rate stipulated by law.
- 2. To promote safety awareness among contractors and oversee a safe work environment in their operations.
- 3. To open up opportunities for contractors to meet with SCG executives to listen to their opinions and concerns so they can work more efficiently to achieve goals.
- 4. To encourage contractors to develop their knowledge to ensure maximum work efficiency.
- 5. To provide support and encourage contractors to adopt the principle of sustainable development through social and environmental responsibility in their business operations, in accordance with SCG Supplier Code of Conduct.

<u>Policies and Practices Toward Joint Venture Partners</u>

SCG respects the rights of joint venture partners and treats every partner equitably and fairly. It also promotes fair treatment of relevant parties in accordance with the Company human rights policy. In addition, the Company works collaboratively with joint venture partners to ensure that the joint ventures achieve the shared goals. The relevant guidelines are as follows:

- 1. To collaborate with joint venture partners in supporting and strengthening the joint venture operations.
- 2. To encourage the exchange of ideas and suggestions with the joint venture partners and to jointly define the business plans to ensure the sustainable growth and development of the joint ventures.
- 3. To monitor the operations of the joint ventures in order to ascertain that they comply with the law and the sustainable development approach.

- 4. To work with the joint venture partners in allocating profits from the joint ventures in a fair and transparent manner.
- 5. To refrain from taking advantage of the joint venture partners in any way.

Policies and Practices Toward Creditors

SCG has a policy to treat its creditors equitably, fairly, and transparently with commitment to strictly comply with all terms and conditions agreed upon. The guidelines are as follows:

- 1. To enter into contract with all types of creditors legally, equitably, fairly, and transparently without taking advantage of the contract party.
- 2. To refrain from resorting to dishonest means or concealment of any information that might harm the Company's creditors.
- 3. To strictly abide by any term or condition stated in any contract entered into with all types of creditors accurately and straightforwardly.
- 4. To repay loans and interest in full to all types of creditors on time as agreed upon.

Policies and Practices Toward the Community

SCG conducts business with respect to human rights, commitment to fairness to all stakeholders, and concern for social responsibility. The Company provides constant support to activities that contribute to improving the quality of life and development of the communities and societies in which SCG operates both in Thailand and the ASEAN countries. The Company encourages its employees and other concerned parties to be good citizens contributing to communities and society. The guidelines are as follows:

- 1. To support and provide needed assistance to society and communities, especially the communities surrounding SCG's plants.
- 2. To preserve the environment nearby the communities and to control and manage waste from the production process and general consumption as well as contamination released into the atmosphere through the use of efficient technology and close monitoring.
- 3. To promote and support the carrying out of activities/projects designed to develop the potential and capabilities of youths in the areas of education, science, technology, sports, and art as well as instilling ethics and morals into young people so they are both smart and ethical individuals.
- 4. To support activities/projects dedicated to providing immediate assistance to those affected by disasters and to improve the potential and quality of life of people in society through various efforts such as career development, and building strong communities to enable people to become self-reliant sustainably.
- 5. To support medical and public welfare activities/projects to enable people in local communities and society at large to have better health and better quality of life.
- 6. To promote and support activities in the areas of art, cultural heritage preservation, and sustaining religion as appropriate.
- 7. To provide support to foundations and charitable organizations to help and provide opportunities to the disenfranchised in society, empowering them to lead better lives. This support also extends to organizations carrying out activities beneficial to human resources development.
- 8. To open up opportunities for communities and other stakeholders to take part in the activities/projects, to voice their opinions and suggestions, or to file complaints as a result of SCG's

operations, with the goal of allowing industry and the community to coexist sustainably.

Policies and Practices Toward Government Agencies

SCG places great importance on government agencies as stakeholders of the Company. Guidelines for engaging in transactions with government agencies are defined in SCG Code of Conduct to allow employees to proceed appropriately and in compliance. The Company also cooperates with government agencies, providing technical assistance and support for various activities. The guidelines are as follows:

- 1. To strictly abide by applicable laws and regulations and keep in mind that laws, regulations, cultures, and traditions in each locale may have different conditions, procedures, or practices.
- 2. To refrain from influencing government officers to abet and collude in improper acts.
- 3. To build a body of knowledge in community development for government agencies such as local administration organizations.
- 4. To provide support to activities undertaken by government agencies.
- 5. To participate in meetings to share ideas, and to provide technical assistance on a continuous basis.
- 6. To receive visits from government agencies.
- 7. To receive comments, suggestions, or complaints from government agencies.

Policies and Practices Toward the Media

SCG stresses the importance of disclosing information to the media so they can communicate the information to the public accurately and rapidly. The guidelines are as follows:

- 1. To disclose information to the media equitably. The information must be accurate, clear, and right to the point.
- 2. To communicate information on a quick and timely basis.
- 3. To provide opportunities for the media to meet and talk with high-ranking executives.
- 4. To facilitate the media to get in contact with the Company.
- 5. To establish good relationships with the media through various activities such as plant visits to allow the media to observe the production process and plant management as well as obtain accurate first-hand information.

Policies and Practices Toward the Civil Society Sector, Academia, and Opinion Leaders

SCG conducts business with concern for social responsibility and all stakeholders. In addition to full and accurate disclosure of information, the Company is open to comments and suggestions from every part of the civil society sector to ensure a shared approach to operating business sustainably alongside social and community development. The guidelines are as follows:

- 1. To disclose information regarding business operations transparently and verifiably.
- 2. To disclose information in the annual report, sustainability report, articles and news releases, as well as in the form of electronic documents and information.
- 3. To carry out business with concern for impact on the environment and the community and to encourage involved persons to take part in protecting the environment.
- 4. To collaborate with the agencies concerned to foster a relationship with the community and promote community involvement.
- 5. To receive comments, suggestions, or complaints from the concerned parties to find means for

collaboration and to meet the needs of all stakeholders.

Policies and Practices toward Competitors

SCG has a policy to treat competitors fairly within the framework of honest competition. The Company is committed to carrying out business fairly in compliance with the law and SCG Code of Conduct and with concern for trade ethics and antitrust laws. The guidelines are as follows:

- 1. To operate under a fair competition framework and applicable laws ethically and transparently and to refrain from taking advantage of competitors unlawfully.
- 2. To refrain from obtaining confidential information through fraudulent or improper means.
- 3. To refrain from violating the intellectual property rights of competitors.
- 4. To refrain from attacking and destroying competitors' reputations by defaming them with any false statement.
- 5. To promote and support free trade and avoid entering into any agreement with competitors that may reduce or restrict competition.

Diversity and Inclusion Policy

SCG recognizes the significance of respecting human rights of every individual, ensuring equitable treatment to all without discrimination, and adhering to ethical business conduct as stipulated in SCG's Human Rights Policy, which includes respect for diversity and inclusion.

To ensure a diversity and inclusion practice that respects human rights, the Board of Directors of The Siam Cement Public Company Limited has deemed it appropriate to develop the Diversity and Inclusion Policy and Guidelines, applicable to all operations involved in SCG's products and services as well as all business activities of SCG) direct activity(, including those of its business partner in the business value chain and joint ventures.

Definition Terms in the Diversity and Inclusion Policy

Diversity refers to individual differences in physical attribute, mental ability, race, nationality, country of origin, ethnicity, religion, gender, language, age, skin color, education, social status, culture, tradition or any other aspects as stipulated by laws of each country and treaty each country has commitment to. Inclusion refers to the appreciation and acceptance of individual differences.

SCG refers to the Siam Cement Group Public Company Limited and subsidiaries of the Siam Cement Public Company Limited in its consolidated financial statements.

Diversity and Inclusion Policy

The Board of Directors, executives, management, and employees at all levels shall recognize and pledge to uphold respect for diversity and inclusion, and:

- Treat everyone equitably, respect and accept individual differences; either internal and outside SCG organization, and comply with SCG's policies, the laws of each country, and treaties by each country is bound;
- Foster an exemplary organizational culture that embraces diversity and inclusion and does not tolerate discrimination and inequitable treatment;
- Promote business practices that, ethically and respectfully, embrace diversity and inclusion in line with this policy among SCG's business partners in the business value chain, suppliers, contractors, and joint ventures.

Guidelines

- 1. Everyone shall treat individuals equitably; show respect for diversity and inclusion; be open and promote openness to different opinions; foster an ambience and organizational culture that embraces diversity and inclusion in accordance with this policy.
- 2. Respect for diversity and inclusion is considered part of SCG's business strategy, which will promote SCG's business initiatives and development.
- 3. The executives, management, supervisors, and leaders at all levels shall promote respect for diversity and inclusion across SCG.
- 4. SCG encourages every business unit to take into consideration diversity and inclusion as appropriate when nominating members of the Board of Directors, members of other committee at any level, or candidates for other positions.
- 5. Diversity and inclusion practices must be strictly applied to human resource management, including recruitment, employeent, employee development, career advancement, performance and remuneration management, retirement, and others.
- 6. SCG shall communicate with and educate SCG's business partners in the business value chain, suppliers, contractors, and joint ventures, as well as foster an understanding, prescribe directions, and provide other supports to promote business practices that embrace diversity and inclusion.
- 7. Every employee must exercise caution when performing duty to prevent human rights violations; be vigilant about diversity and inclusion; and do not willfully ignore any act considered to violate the rights of an individual related to SCG, in which case the employee shall report the incident to supervisors or responsible parties, cooperate in fact-finding processes, and should there be any inquiries, consult their supervisors or responsible parties through designated channels.
- 8. SCG shall fairly treat and protect any whistleblower who reports a violation of the rights of an individual related to SCG by implementing whistleblower protection measures to protect all whistleblowers and informants involved as stipulated in SCG Whistleblower Protection Policy.
- 9. Any person who violates the rights of another person on the basis of their individual differences, which is also considered a violation of SCG Code of Conduct, shall be subject to a disciplinary inquiry as prescribed by SCG's regulations and may also be subject to legal punishment if the act is against the law.

The Company has a policy to distribute dividends at the rate of 40 - 50% of net profit as specified on the consolidated financial statements. The Company may consider changing the dividend distribution in case of necessity or extraordinary circumstances.

For dividend policy of most subsidiaries which are 100% owned by the company, the company takes into consideration their operating results, financial structure, financial position and investment plan, with no policy of transferring the interests.

SCG Supplier Code of Conduct

SCG has developed SCG Supplier Code of Conduct in order to develop correct understanding among SCG suppliers and to serve as a mutual business standard to be adopted. SCG Supplier Code of Conduct comprises the five following principles.

- 1) <u>Business ethics</u>: Conduct business with honesty; uphold fairness for all stakeholders; disclose correct and complete information; protect confidentiality; and respect intellectual properties of others.
- 2) <u>Labor and human rights</u>: Do not discriminate; attach importance to labor protection, especially child labor, women's labor, and alien labor; do not use or exploit forced labor; and ensure correct and fair remuneration, benefits, and work periods.
- Occupational health and safety: Keep the work environment hygienic and safe; control risks of accidents and potential health impacts while on duty; and provide sufficient and ready personal protective equipment.
- 4) <u>Environment</u>: Conduct business with consideration to impacts on natural resources and the environment as per the principles of 3Rs: namely reduce, reuse/recycle, and replenish.
- 5) **Laws and regulations:** Abide by all applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Antitrust Policy

Antitrust laws are vital economic laws directly related to all business operations. The government has enacted antitrust laws to ensure all businesses compete with fairness, to prevent trade distortion, and to control abusive market power which may cause damages to other businesses. Antitrust laws impose severe civil and criminal penalties on company and its executives, the result of which may seriously tarnish SCG's business reputation worldwide in case of non-compliance.

Adhering to fair competition and taking into consideration trade ethics together with interest of its customers and suppliers, Antitrust Policy has long been included as a part of SCG Code of Conduct. Recently, the government has enacted the new Trade Competition Act 2017 (B.E. 2560) which came into effect on October 5, 2017. The new Antitrust laws have introduced some important changes; therefore, the Board of Directors deemed it appropriate for SCG to review, recheck, compile, and publish guidelines on antitrust in writing, which SCG employees are required to study and strictly comply with.

Policy

- SCG shall always engage its business to adhere to fairness and ethics, respect rules and regulations, and strictly comply with antitrust laws. SCG shall not engage or involve in any practice that may result in unfair competition, distortion of free trade, or undermining or causing damages, obstruction, or restriction to business operations of others.
- 2. In case SCG is a dominant position in the market according to the law, SCG shall not unfairly or unreasonably abuse such market dominance which may distort free and fair competition.
- 3. SCG shall not directly or indirectly engage in any practice that may cease competition with its competitors, including not to exchange business information or enter into agreements with its competitors, suppliers, or customers in order to reduce or limit competition in the market.
- 4. All units involved, domestic and overseas, shall be required to study and comply with applicable antitrust laws, regulations and policies, including trade practices of the countries where SCG has business operations, including regulations on merger control.
- 5. SCG employees shall be aware at all times that compliance with antitrust laws is of paramount importance and shall exercise utmost caution in carrying out operations to ensure that SCG respects antitrust laws and trade ethics. SCG employees shall also inform SCG's suppliers of the significance of compliance with antitrust laws.
- 6. All units involved in transactions and investment activities shall establish control and audit system to ensure full compliance with antitrust laws.
- 7. To ensure compliance with this Antitrust Policy, SCG Code of Ethics, SCG Code of Conduct, and the Company's antitrust guidelines shall also be applied to the operations.
- 8. Non-compliance with this Antitrust Policy is considered a violation of SCG Code of Conduct.

SCG Procurement and Vendor Selection Policies and Guidelines

The Board of Directors of The Siam Cement Public Company Limited, in its meeting held on Wednesday 29 October 2014, approved the setting up and disclosure of SCG Procurement and Vendor Selection Policies and Guidelines to ensure that the selection process of SCG will be systematic, fair and transparent. SCG endorses vendors who are committed to ethical business practices and responsibilities toward society and environment and will not conduct transactions with any person who is involved in illegal or fraudulent activities or is suspected to do as such.

Definitions

Procurement means the purchase, hire of work, outsource service, transportation service, lease and hire purchase.

Vendor means a seller/supplier, contractor, service provider, lessor or hire purchase provider who delivers goods or services to SCG.

Vendor List means a list of Vendors who conduct transactions with SCG and whose names are listed in the SCG system.

Approved Vendor List means Vendors listed in the Vendor List who have undergone SCG's selection and performance evaluation processes for the relevant goods and service categories.

SCG Procurement and Vendor Selection Policies

SCG will conduct its Procurement in a systematic manner according to the strict controlled procurement regulations of SCG, taken into account the needs of SCG in terms of quality, price, quantity, time, service, delivery, after-sale service, warranty, and other requirements. SCG will not conduct transactions with any person who is involved in illegal or fraudulent activities or is suspected to do as such.

SCG Vendor Selection shall be systematic, fair and transparent. SCG endorses Vendors who are committed to ethical business practices and responsibilities toward society and environment.

Qualifications of SCG Vendors

- 1. The Vendor shall have verifiable business facilities.
- 2. The Vendor shall have reliable staff, machinery and equipment, products, services, warehouses, financial status and performance records.
- 3. The Vendor shall agree to comply with SCG Supplier Code of Conduct.
- 4. The Vendor shall have satisfactory performance records, which will be evaluated by SCG on the basis of the quality of goods and services, including the delivery, after-sale services, warranty or other transactional requirements.
- 5. The Vendor shall have no conflict of interest with SCG's business.
- 6. The Vendor shall never be banned from doing business due to fraudulent conducts.

Application

1. Prospective vendors can submit an application form provided by SCG together with detailed information and supporting documents, which include a registration certificate or identity certificate, other certificates issued by government authorities, power of attorney documents, bank account numbers and copies of registration certificates issued by the Department of Revenue such as a copy of the Certificate of Value Added Tax (Por Por 20). The application form and supporting documents shall be submitted to SCG's procurement unit.

2. SCG's Vendor shall sign its agreement to comply with SCG Supplier Code of Conduct.

Business Transaction Procedures

- 1. SCG only deals business with Vendors listed in the Vendor List, except for the cases of a price quotation or a tender where the non-listed Vendors may be invited to submit a quotation or tender and can apply for a Vendor status thereafter if selected. SCG may ask its Vendors to agree to electronic transactions in accordance with the applicable electronic transactions laws for convenience and speed of the transactions.
- 2. A written purchase order or an agreement between a Vendor and SCG will be considered constituting the transactional obligations between both parties.
- 3. For submitting a price quotation or entering into an agreement, SCG may request in writing a performance bond, from the Vendor which will be returned after all transactional obligations are completed.
- 4. Upon the completion of their obligations under an agreement, contract or purchase order, Vendors shall submit the relevant tax invoices, receipts and/or other necessary supporting documents to SCG for payment at the time and place specified by SCG. This is to provide convenience and speed of operation for all work units. SCG will pay the Vendors for the prices of the delivered goods/services after deducting the withholding tax required by laws, and other expenses incurred under the agreement such as a performance bond. The payment will be transferred into the bank account notified by the Vendors unless a cheque payment is requested. SCG reserves the right to issue only account payee cheques.
- 5. Vendors may request an amendment of their data in the SCG system by contacting SCG's procurement unit and submitting supporting documents certified by the Vendors' authorized person.
- 6. Vendors may file a complaint on unfair treatment under the SCG Corporate Governance Principles through the specified channel at SCG Whistleblowing System, https://whistleblowing.scg.com

SCG Environment and Climate Policy

With commitment to be a regional business leader focusing on innovation and sustainability. SCG realized the importance of environmental and climate management as key drivers in sustainable growth of our business. SCG has therefore chartered this policy that revise from previous SCG Environment and Energy Policy)1 April 2016(in order to ensure its efficiency and effectiveness of our environmental and climate management, as in SCG business philosophy.

The policy outlined herewith shall be applied to all production operations, business facilities, business partner in value chain and joint venture: from designing, procuring, manufacturing of products, services and solutions, distribution and logistics, and managing of our wastes and end of used products. This policy shall also be applied to suppliers, contractors and service providers; other key business partners such as non-managed operations, joint venture partners, outsourcing partners, new project, modification project, due diligence of mergers and acquisitions with the following:

- 1. Conduct the business in comply with regulatory requirements as a minimum including alignment with global issues and response to local concerns in line with SCG Sustainable Development Guidelines and other our policies.
- 2. Operate the business with minimize the environment impacts by climate change mitigation and adaptation, protecting the environment, sustainable use of natural resources including energy and water through eco-efficiency and circular economy: alignment with the Paris Agreement challenge targets, zero waste to landfill, protecting of biodiversity and ecosystems, supply chain management, green procurement, and green and eco products, services and solutions.
- 3. Implement the environmental management system as a part of business operation along with continual improvement and audit of its management system to enhance environmental performance.
- 4. Identify materiality issues and develop an environment and climate management that is accompanied by key performance indicators and strategies driving to achieve their performance targets.
- 5. Be open, transparent and accountable to our stakeholders regarding our environment and climate performance and regularly reporting.
- 6. Educate and raise awareness on environment and climate management among employees, customers, suppliers, contractors and others related stakeholders.

To ensure that this Environment and Climate policy is embedded in our organizational culture and put into action, all companies shall adapt this policy to suit their business according to SCG Vision.

Part 4 Appendix

Part 4 Appendix

Definitions

- SCG
 - 1. The Siam Cement Public Company Limited
 - 2. Subsidiaries of The Siam Cement Public Company Limited.
- Company directors: The directors of The Siam Cement Public Company Limited.
- **Subsidiaries**: Subsidiaries as defined by consolidated financial statement of The Siam Cement Public Company Limited.
- **SCG Employee**: Anyone contracted to work, to be probationary employees, or to provide special services for SCG in every country where SCG operates.
- **Stakeholders:** Persons/entities directly or indirectly impacted by SCG's business or involved with SCG's interests or impacting on SCG's business, such as Company directors, employees, shareholders, contractual parties, contractors, business contacts, creditors, debtors, society at large, and communities where SCG operates.
- **Business Partner** or **Contractor**: One hired to work or provides services to SCG or hired as service contractual parties to SCG.
- **Vendor:** Goods seller, lessor or hire-purchaser who hands over goods to SCG.
- **Contractual Part**y: One who enter into contractual obligations, namely mutual rights and responsibilities specified in a contract with SCG. This includes the joint ventures.
- Business contact: A person or legal entity with whom SCG has to deal in the normal course of business, including the government, state agencies, state enterprises, private-sector organizations, and organizations, etc.
- Customer: A purchaser and user of goods and service receiver.
- **Transaction**: Activity relating to legal transaction, contract or any action made with other parties in terms of finance, business or asset such as service providing, purchasing, selling, hiring, financial support and technical or human resource support etc.